Planning Commission
Regular Meeting

Tuesday, March 12, 2024, 7:00 P.M.
AGENDA

Participate In-Person:
San Rafael City Council Chambers
1400 Fifth Avenue, San Rafael, CA 94901

Watch Online:

Watch on Zoom Webinar: http://tinyurl.com/Planning-Commision-24
Watch on YouTube: http://www.youtube.com/cityofsanrafael
Listen by phone: 1 (669) 444-9171
ID: 840 9897 7308#

One Tap Mobile: US: +16694449171, 84098977308#

This meeting will be held in-person. This meeting is being streamed to YouTube at
www.youtube.com/cityofsanrafael.

How to participate in the meeting:
e You are welcome to come to the meeting and provide public comment in
person. Each speaker will have 3-minutes to provide public comment.
e Submit your comments by email to
PlanningPublicComment@cityofsanrafael.org by 4:00 p.m. the day of the
meeting.

If you experience technical difficulties during the meeting, please contact
PlanningPublicComment@cityofsanrafael.org.

CALL TO ORDER

RECORDING OF MEMBERS PRESENT AND ABSENT
APPROVAL OR REVISION OF ORDER OF AGENDA ITEMS
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF MEETING PROCEDURES

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

Remarks are limited to three minutes per person and may be on anything within the subject
matter jurisdiction of the body. Remarks on non-agenda items will be heard first, remarks on
agenda items will be heard at the time the item is discussed.

CONSENT CALENDAR
The Consent Calendar allows the Commission to take action, without discussion, on Agenda
items for which there are no persons present who wish to speak, and no Commission

members who wish to discuss.

NONE


http://tinyurl.com/Planning-Commision-24
http://www.youtube.com/cityofsanrafael
http://www.youtube.com/cityofsanrafael
mailto:PlanningPublicComment@cityofsanrafael.org
mailto:PlanningPublicComment@cityofsanrafael.org

ACTION ITEMS

1. Appeal of Zoning Administrator Decision to Approve a Conditional Use Permit
and Minor Design Review to install a Freestanding Wireless Facility at 999 Old
Lucas Valley Road.

Address: 999 Old Lucas Valley Road

APNs: 165-010-03

General Plan: Parks Recreation and Open Space

Zoning: Parks/Open Space District

Owner/Applicant: Marin Municipal Water District

Appellant: Mont Marin/San Rafael Park Neighborhood Association

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The project is categorically exempt from the provisions
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000,
et seq. and California Code of Regulations, §15000, et seq.) pursuant to Section
15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures).

Project Planner: Margaret Kavanaugh-Lynch margaret.kavanaugh-
lynch@cityofsanrafael.org

Recommended Action - It is recommended that the Planning Commission:

A. Convene a public hearing on the Appeal of the decision of the Acting
Zoning Administrator.

B. Discuss the Staff report, testimony and ask questions of the Staff,
Appellant and Applicant, as needed.

C. Approve the Resolution denying the appeal and affirming the decision

of the Acting Zoning Administrator to approve the project.
DIRECTOR’S REPORT
COMMISSION COMMUNICATION
ADJOURNMENT

Any records relating to an agenda item, received by a majority or more of the Commission less than 72
hours before the meeting, shall be available for inspection online. Sign Language interpreters may be
requested by calling (415) 485-3066 (voice), emailing city.clerk@cityofsanrafael.org or using the California
Telecommunications Relay Service by dialing “7117, at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. Copies
of documents are available in accessible formats upon request.

The Planning Commission will take up no new business after 11:00 p.m. at regularly scheduled meetings.
This shall be interpreted to mean that no agenda item or other business will be discussed or acted upon
after the agenda item under consideration at 11:00 p.m. The Commission may suspend this rule to discuss
and/or act upon any additional agenda item(s) deemed appropriate by a unanimous vote of the members
present. Appeal rights: any person may file an appeal of the Planning Commission's action on agenda items
within five business days (normally 5:00 p.m. on the following Tuesday) and within 10 calendar days of an
action on a subdivision. An appeal letter shall be filed with the City Clerk, along with an appeal fee of $350
(for non-applicants) or a $4,476 deposit (for applicants) made payable to the City of San Rafael and shall
set forth the basis for appeal. There is a $50.00 additional charge for request for continuation of an appeal
by appellant.


mailto:margaret.kavanaugh-lynch@cityofsanrafael.org
mailto:margaret.kavanaugh-lynch@cityofsanrafael.org
mailto:city.clerk@cityofsanrafael.org

Meeting March 12, 2024

SAN RAFAEL I-D\Z:aer;da Item: 1

THE CITY WITH A MISSION Case Number: PLAN24-0014

Community Development Department — Planning | Project Margaret Kavanaugh-
Division Planner: Lynch, Planning Manager

REPORT TO PLANNING COMMISSION

SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider the Appeal of an Acting Zoning Administrator
Decision to Approve a Conditional Use Permit and Minor Design Review to install a
Freestanding Wireless Facility at 999 Old Lucas Valley Road, Assessor Parcel Number:
165-010-03

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

On January 17, 2024, The Acting Zoning Administrator held a hearing and considered an
application for a conditional use permit and minor design review to install a freestanding
wireless facility. Based on the findings and subject to the conditions included in the
minutes, the Acting Zoning Administrator approved the project. The Acting Zoning
Administrator Minutes are included as Exhibit B.

On January 23, 2024, The City of San Rafael received a timely appeal of the action of the
Acting Zoning Administrator, it is included as Exhibit C. The Appeal date was originally
set for February 27, 2024 however a representative for the Appellant asked to move the
hearing to the next Planning Commission date to allow for several neighbors to attend.
Staff was able to honor the request.

In San Rafael, appeals of land use projects are governed by Chapter 14.28 of the San
Rafael Municipal Code. Section 14.28.050 - Notice of decision states in part, “After the
hearing, the appellate body shall affirm, modify or reverse the original decision.” To
summarize, the Planning Commission should hold a public hearing and at its conclusion,
affirm, modify or reverse the original decision of the Acting Zoning Administrator, based
on their own findings of fact gathered from the staff report, written record, as well as the
oral and written testimony of the Appellant, Applicant and all other parties that provide
information to the Commission at the hearing.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Planning Commission:

(1) Convene a public hearing on the Appeal of the decision of the Acting Zoning
Administrator.



(2) Discuss the Staff report, testimony and ask questions of the Staff, Appellant and
Applicant, as needed.

(3) Approve the Resolution Denying the Appeal and Affirming the Decision of the Acting
Zoning Administrator to Approve the Project.

PROPERTY FACTS

Address/Location:

999 Old Lucas Valley
Road

Parcel Number(s):

165-010-03

Property Size:

1.05 acres

Neighborhood:

Mont Marin/San Rafael
Park

Site Characteristics

General Plan

Zoning District

Existing Land-Use

Open Space

Space District

Designation

Project Site: Parks Recreation and | Parks/ Open Jerry Russom
Open Space Space District Memorial Park and

Water Tower

North: Parks Recreation and | Parks/ Open Open Space
Open Space Space District

South: Parks Recreation and | Parks/ Open Open Space
Open Space Space District

East: Parks Recreation and | Parks/ Open Open Space
Open Space Space District

West: Parks Recreation and | Parks/ Open Open Space

Site Description/Setting:

The subject site is located within Jerry Russom Memorial Park, south of Lucas Valley
Road and Miller Creek. The site is accessed from Water Tank Fire Road, which connects
Old Lucas Valley Road to the north and Springs Hill Rife Road at the south. The site has
an existing water tank operated by the Marin Municipal Water District, and an existing cell
tower. It is surrounded on all sides by a 145.39 acre open space area owned by Marin
County Open Space District.




Figure 1 Vicinity Map

Figure 2 Project Site Plan

)
N IES ps 5
Gt ]

L
I
i T e —ET
SEE LEASE AFEa | . /
DET:IL SHEET ¢=2.
Tomm—— N .
T g
Mg

Lo

e
e
A METLE THER
ToEm372 [}

Comws T vl P
L /1 GELE EGUFVENT Cow 7‘»0
]

.

L]
o X
§ S
:I" | | LT
. FER NARKINGS '
- |
=
& BT Tk g{
el g
) . :
. PEOECEED NOH—EWCLLAE UNENSEE et
f 000 ALCERE ARD UTILTY AOUTE E |
/ '
| X
[ . '
) f
i !
APN B85 —010—03F K
0

'“/v“—-—u__
_— e
LT Bungge, !
Y oAy
y _—
——

e
A g,
“ 85 oy,
]

SO g

AR g



DISCUSSION

Land Use Context

There is a land use context that the Planning Commission needs to consider when
reviewing this project. The first set of regulations is the Telecommunications Act of 1996
and the Spectrum Act of 2012. California cities are preempted from regulating various
aspects of wireless communications facility siting by both state and federal law. There are
both substantive and procedural limitations on reviewing and processing these types of
applications, which are discussed below.

Federal Telecommunication Regulations

The Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”), pursuant to regulations established
under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (“Act”) and the Spectrum Act of 2012,
regulates the development of wireless communications infrastructure, limiting both the
scope and duration of local government review.

The Act, other laws enacted by Congress, and the implementing regulations adopted by
the FCC, have a significant effect on the City’s ability to regulate wireless communications
applications by preempting the City from regulating in certain areas.

One such area of preemption is Radio Frequency (“RF”) emissions. The City cannot
regulate on the basis of environmental impacts from RF emissions. Environmental
impacts from RF emissions include any potential or perceived health effects of the RF
emissions. The City may only seek confirmation that the WCF will comply with federal
regulations establishing permissible limits on RF emissions.

Additionally, federal regulations prohibit any State or local government from unreasonably
discriminating among providers of functionally equivalent services in the regulation of the
placement, construction, and modification of personal wireless service facilities. (47
U.S.C. § 332(c)(7)(B)(i))-

The federal and state laws also limit or prohibit local discretionary review over certain
other technical aspects of wireless facilities, including demonstration of need or
alternative siting requirements that are excessively burdensome to Applicants. This
application has demonstrated compliance with all applicable FCC standards for RF
emissions, as shown in the application packet included as Exhibit D. As part of the Staff
analysis, the Applicant also provided an Alternative Coverage Map to illustrate that if the
freestanding wireless facility was limited to the maximum allowable height of the zoning
district the minimum coverage would not be provided and the project objective would not
be met. This Map is included as Exhibit E.

Current FCC rules prohibit local governments from regulating in a manner that has the
effect of prohibiting the provision of personal wireless service by materially limiting or
inhibiting the ability of any competitor to compete in a regulatory environment. This
means that local regulations may not prohibit “densifying a wireless network, introducing
new services, or otherwise improving service capabilities.” The FCC’s Declaratory Ruling



and Third Report and Order entitled Accelerating Wireless Broadband by Removing
Barriers to Infrastructure Investment, WT Docket No. 17-79 (FCC 18-133), Exhibit F,
provides in relevant part as follows, “a state or local legal requirement could materially
inhibit service in numerous ways, not only by rendering a service provider unable to
provide an existing service in a new geographic area or by restricting the entry of a new
provider in providing service in a particular area, but also by materially inhibiting the
introduction of new services or the improvement of existing services.” (FCC 18-133, q] 35-
37.)

However, the City retains the authority to regulate the placement and design of wireless
facilities based on objective criteria, so long as reasonable alternatives are available to
the carrier. Specifically, FCC Order No. 18-133 provides that, with regard to Small
Wireless Facilities, local jurisdictions may implement rules for aesthetic and locational
requirements that are “(1) reasonable, (2) no more burdensome than those applied to
other types of infrastructure deployments and are (3) objective and published in advance.”
(FCC 18-133, ] 86.) Although the application at issue here is not a Small Wireless
Facility, this guidance from the FCC can be applied to all types of wireless facilities.

Finally, Staff notes that local jurisdictions’ decisions on wireless applications have
permitting time limits as mandated by Federal regulations, commonly referred to as the
“shot clock,” which for this application will expire on March 24, 2024. Given the short
time periods allowed for review local jurisdictions that adopt regulations for wireless
facilities often provide processes that include administrative review, rather than
discretionary review in order to be able to meet these very narrow time-frames.

City of San Rafael Municipal Code

The second set of regulations is located in the City of San Rafael Municipal Code. As
noted in the Acting Zoning Administrator Minutes, the sections that pertain to this project
are:

SRMC 14.16.360 Wireless Communication Facilities

“The purpose of this chapter is to establish “standards to regulate the design and
placement of towers, antennas, and other wireless communication transmission and/or
reception facilities (hereinafter called wireless communication facilities) on public and
private property, including facilities within the public right-of-way to minimize the potential
safety and aesthetic impacts on neighboring property owners and the community, and to
comply with applicable state and federal laws, including the Federal Telecommunications
Act of 1996.”

SMRC Chapter 14.22 Use Permits

“The purpose of this chapter is to consider “uses which may be suitable only in specific
locations in a zoning district or which require special consideration in their design,
operation or layout to ensure compatibility with surrounding uses.”

SMRC Chapter 14.25 Environmental and Design Review




“The purpose of this of this chapter is to implement “general plan policies concerning the
environment and design by guiding the location, functions and appearance of
development. The key environmental and design goal of the City is to respect and protect
the natural environment and assure that development is harmoniously integrated with the
existing qualities of the City.”

As included in the Acting Zoning Administrator Minutes, findings were made and
conditions were added to respond to each of these chapters before the action was taken.

APPEAL

Staff has summarized each of the issues identified in the appeal below. After each issue,
Staff has included their response. The full appeal is included in this Staff report as Exhibit
C.

Issue 1: No staff report or materials were provided to the public in advance of the hearing.
As you can see from the attached agenda, it would be difficult for the public to understand
the tower height and the number of towers being contemplated.

Staff Response: Staff concurs with this issue. While not legally required, staff reports
prepared in advance of the Acting Zoning Administrator hearings with attachments would
be very helpful to everyone and should be distributed in advance of the Acting Zoning
Administrator hearing. The past practice was to bring all of the information to the hearing
and then send out the minutes with the project description, findings and if appropriate,
conditions of approval after the completion of the hearing. After the Interim Community
Development Director and new Planning Manager discovered this practice, it has been
changed and now staff reports are published before the hearing date so that the public
as well as the applicants can have a clear understanding of the project description, as
well as the draft findings and conditions, if the Staff recommendation is to approve the
project.

Issue 2: San Rafael Municipal Code (SRMC) 14.10 Parks/Open Space provide specifics
about uses. SRMC 14.10.010G. provides that one of the purposes is to “discourage public
utility facilities in open space areas to minimize harm to the area’s visual quality.”

Staff Response: Table 14.10.020 notes that Public and Utility Facilities are permitted with
through a use permit process. Further, this site is already occupied with a water tower
and another wireless facility. In this instance, the visual quality of the open space had
already been disturbed by the other existing uses. Additionally, because another carrier
is located in this area, the City cannot unreasonably discriminate among providers of
functionally equivalent services in the regulation of the placement of the wireless facility.

Issue 3. SRMC 14.10.030 provides a maximum height of 36', with exceptions allowed
subject to the provisions of Chapter 14.24. SRMC 14.24E. provides for height increases,
where “necessary for health or safety purposes, and may only be approved where scenic
views are not adversely affected, and where exceptional design is provided, and if more



than 5’, must be approved by the Planning Commission. Findings were not made
regarding these issues in the Notice of Decision.

Staff Response: While SRMC 14.10.030 applies generally to development in this zoning
district, Staff are required to use a more specific standard, SRMC 14.16.360, when
working with a wireless facility.

14.16.360 is the City’s Telecommunication Ordinance.

“This section establishes standards to regulate the design and placement of towers,
antennas, and other wireless communication transmission and/or reception facilities
(hereinafter called wireless communication facilities) on public and private property,
including facilities within the public right-of-way to minimize the potential safety and
aesthetic impacts on neighboring property owners and the community, and to comply with
applicable state and federal laws, including the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996.”

SRMC Section 14.16.360 sets out different levels of review that is required for various
types of wireless facilities. Subsection B.2.a requires discretionary review “for new
ground-mounted facilities (towers and monopoles) or significant additions proposed to
existing facilities that would increase its visual height, overall dimensions and/or lease
area (e.g., more than ten-percent increase in the existing permitted height, overall
dimension, lease area,).” It also notes that, “A Acting Zoning Administrator level use
permit and an environmental and design review permit shall be required for the following
wireless communication facilities pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 14.22, Use
Permits, and Chapter 14.25, Environmental and Design Review Permits, consistent with
the provisions of this section.” Therefore, the Acting Zoning Administrator level of
discretionary review for this project was appropriate.

Finally, SRMC B.2.d. offers Staff some flexibility as to the body of decision. It states, “The
community development director may elevate the project for review and action by the
planning commission or refer a project to the design review board for its recommendation,
as determined necessary to assure that appropriate stealth designs are being proposed
to the maximum extent practicable, that the facility location is suitable, that development
appropriately responds to its setting, and that the requirements of this section are
substantially addressed.”

In this case, the determination was originally made by a previous Community
Development Director and the project was under review when the current Interim Director
and Planning Manager joined the City. However, when the question of proper purview
was raised at the hearing, the Acting Zoning Administrator and the Associate Planner
reviewed the municipal code and verified that it was appropriate to keep the project at the
Acting Zoning Administrator level of review in order to expedite review and meet the
applicable shot clocks.

As such, the Acting Zoning Administrator properly considered the requirements of SRMC
14.16.360 and determined that the height of the proposed facility was appropriate
because this additional height is necessary for the wireless provider to be able to provide



services to its subscribers. In addition, she noted that some of the additional height
proposed will be created by faux “crown” of the “monopine”- or “monoak” - type facility,
which will partially hide from view the facility by mimicking a tapered tree silhouette. This
finding, along with Condition No. 12 listed below enabled the Acting Zoning Administrator
to be an acceptable aesthetic solution to the proposed overall height of the project.

Issue 4: SRMC 14.10.030 also refers to Chapter 14.16 for site development standards.
SRMC 14.16.360 addresses wireless communication facilities. 14.16.360A.3 encourages
“the joint use of new and existing ground mounted facility monopole/tower sites as a
primary option rather than construction of additional single-use towers.” The Applicant
stated that the existing Sprint pole won't support more equipment. We request the City
evaluate an alternative that requires replacement of the existing Sprint pole with a new
pole that will support all the equipment.

Staff Response: There is no legal basis to require an existing wireless facility (the Sprint
pole) to replace its equipment in order to support the equipment of another carrier. The
City must analyze the development application it currently has before it in a manner that
is consistent with the law. The Acting Zoning Administrator analyzed the application and
determined that it met the requirements of SRMC 14.16.030 and granted the application
with conditions of approval. These conditions of approval did add condition of approval
#26 to require the applicant to support future co-location. Please see list of conditions
included at the end of Exhibit B.

Issue 5: The application contains a request for a height of 56'. Why aren't iterations
provided to balance coverage versus visual impacts? For example, every 5": at 41'; 46",
and 51'? The design of additional antenna facilities should be as low, stealth, and
inconspicuous as possible. An Alternative Site Analysis per SRMC 14.16.360D.8 should
be prepared by the Applicant, and should be reviewed by Staff or a third party and both
the analysis and review should be included in a Staff report attached to the agenda. The
site analysis should include a narrative describing alternative sites that were considered
that would meet coverage objectives, a coverage map, alternative designs, heights, and
placements that would meet coverage objectives. This site is one of the least preferred
locations, therefore, the analysis will need to demonstrate that the site is critical to meet
coverage objectives, and there is no feasible alternative site that could be selected. The
analysis should provide supporting reasons why the alternate sites were infeasible and
rejected, why co-location is not being pursued, and why the proposed site is superior from
a technical or other standpoint to the others considered. When asked at the hearing by
the hearing officer how the proposed height was determined, the Applicant response was
“that’s what the engineers came up with.” We feel that is not an adequate basis to exceed
the height limit by 56%. Additional findings are needed in the Notice of Decision to support
whatever height is approved.

Staff Response: The application which is publicly available online, included the
information required by SRMC 14.16.360.D. The application also described the objective
of the project, which is to improve coverage and capacity along an area centered on Lucas
Valley Road and Las Galinas Avenue and a Coverage Map which illustrated the both the
need for the wireless facility and coverage provided once the wireless facility was




completed. While completing the analysis, Staff asked the Applicant to provide a second
Coverage Map to model what the coverage would look like if the wireless facility was
limited to the maximum height of 36 ft. The second Coverage Map is included as Exhibit
E. It shows a far more limited coverage in the objective areas, supporting the need for the
proposed height included in the application.

In addition, the Acting Zoning Administrator questioned the Applicant at the hearing to
confirm how the Applicant identified the height of the wireless facility, and he confirmed
that the engineers set the height to meet the objective. That statement, along with the
application information, the supplemental submittal and Staff analysis confirmed to the
Acting Zoning Administrator that the height proposed is what is required to be allowed by
FCC regulations in order to not “materially inhibit” the ability of wireless providers to
provide services.

ltem 6. SRMC 14.360.360G.3 provides required findings regarding the location, and that
the proposal will avoid or minimize adverse effects. These findings were not made in the
Notice of Decision. How was it determined that a mockup of the facility (e.g., story-poles)
is not required at the site?

Staff Response: The findings for SRMC 14.16.360.G.3 are as follows:

a. “The location of the proposed facility site is essential to meet the service demands
of the carrier and no other alternative co-location, existing development or utility
facility site, or type of antenna support structure is feasible. This shall be
documented by the Applicant providing a list of the locations of preferred
technically feasible sites, the good faith efforts and measures taken by the
Applicant to secure these preferred sites, and the specific reasons why these
efforts and measures were unsuccessful.”

b. “The use of a monopole for the proposed facility by itself or in combination with
other existing, approved, and proposed facilities will avoid or minimize adverse
effects related to land use compatibility, visual resources and public safety.”

The application does include an Alternative Site Analysis, noting the objective, the
areas in the vicinity that might work to meet the objective, including the other wireless
facility in the area, and why none of these sites would be successful.

Further, Acting Zoning Administrator did find at the hearing that the use of a new
monopole, using either a faux pine or oak finish, and at the height proposed, would
minimize adverse effects related to land use compatibility, visual resources and public
safety in that it is being located on a site that already contains an existing water tower
site that has another wireless facility, in an otherwise natural open space area. And
as conditioned, it will be constructed to meet all federal, state and local codes related
to public safety.

In lieu of requiring story poles in a wooded area, the Acting Zoning Administrator found
the photo simulations provided adequate visual representation of the proposed
project. SRMC 14.16.360.D.10 allows the Director to make that determination.



ltem 7. The easement connection to Old Lucas Valley Road, and the Old Lucas Valley
Road easement through the City’s Jerry Russom Park require ongoing maintenance. Old
Lucas Valley Road is deteriorating and the upslope and downslope shoulders are failing.
The Applicant and the other users of the road need to enter into a long-term maintenance
agreement now before additional construction traffic occurs. This is designated as a Class
1 bikeway in the City's Master Plan.

Staff Response: As noted in the Acting Zoning Administrator Minutes, the Acting Zoning
Administrator explained to the community member at the hearing that it was not legally
possible to require the Applicant to maintain the access road, owned by others, however any
damage caused by the construction or maintenance of the facility would be the responsibility
of the Applicant.

ltem 8: We request that the Water Tank Fire Road trail remain open to the public during
construction and maintenance.

Staff Response: The Planning Commission may choose to request that the Applicant
and/or Property Owner volunteer to leave the Water Tank Fire Road Trail open during
construction and maintenance, although these parties may choose to limit the Trail for
public safety reasons. Staff has no way to require this access and finds it may at times
be unsafe to do so.

Item 8: SRMC 14.16.360F requires notice to all property owners within 1000’. We request
that notice be provided for the Planning Commission meeting.

Staff Response: The section noted in the Appellant's letter references notice
requirements for the public meeting or hearing to consider the use permit and or
environmental and design review permit -not an appeal. The Appeal was noticed in
compliance with the SRMC Chapter 14.29 Public Notice. This is the chapter referenced
as the required process for public notice in Chapter 14.28 Appeals. The public notice for
the appeal was mailed to owners of the project site and Applicant, as well as the affected
Homeowner’s Association, and any nonowner occupants and tenants within a radius of
three hundred feet (300') from the exterior boundaries of the property that is the subject
of the meeting or hearing. In addition, the public hearing notice was included in the Marin
Independent Journal dated February 24, 2024.

ltem 9: General Plan Policy PROS-3.9 addresses Utilities in Open Space. We request a
consistency determination in the Notice of Decision.

Staff Response: In the Finding A of the Environmental and Design Review component of
the Acting Zoning Administrator Minutes, the Acting Zoning Administrator noted, “The
property is in the Parks, Rec., and Open Space General Plan land use designation. The new
equipment will be located at a site with previously approved telecommunication facilities. The
design of the new facility has been reviewed pursuant to SRMC § 14.16.120 as the pole will
extend above the established building height limit for the zoning district. The proposed new
facility will provide extended telecommunication services for the surrounding area per Policy
CSI-4.16 of the General Plan 2040.”

10



The Appellant is requesting an additional consistency with the General Plan for Policy PROS-
3.9. PROS-3.9 states, “Discourage large-scale utility infrastructure such as electric
transmission lines, large wind turbines, and cellular phone towers in local open space
areas. Where such facilities already exist, or where there are no other siting options,
utilities should be located and designed to minimize harm to avian life and the area’s
environmental and visual quality.”

As noted in this Staff report, the application does include an Alternative Site Analysis,
noting the objective, the areas in the vicinity that might work to meet the objective,
including the other wireless facility in the area, and why none of these sites would be
successful. Staff continues to find that the use of a new monopole, using either a faux
pine or oak finish at the height proposed, would minimize adverse effects related to land
use compatibility, visual quality in that it is proposed to be located on a site that already
contains an existing water tower and has another wireless facility, in an otherwise natural
open space area. Staff therefore finds this project to be consistent with the General Plan
policy identified in the Appeal.

Item 10: Notice of Decision

The Site Description references “several existing cell towers.” We believe that is incorrect,
and it could be misleading in that someone may think this is a very industrialized area,
when in fact it is Open Space.

Staff Response: Staff agrees that the term “several existing cell towers” is stated in the
site description of the Acting Zoning Administrator Minutes. Staff apologizes if this left the
impression that this was an industrialized area. Other parts of the hearing did include the
discussion of the site and reviewing the photo simulations that illustrated the fact that the
project site is located in an area comprised of wooded open space. This point also
illustrates the need to have a staff report prepared and released before the Acting Zoning
Administrator hearing so a more comprehensive presentation can be made.

Item 11. Finding D. refers to “privately owned land.” The site is public land, owned by the
Marin Municipal Water District.

Staff Response. Staff agrees that the site is owned by the Marin Municipal Water District,
a type of special district. And, Staff continues to note that there will be with minimal access
from the public right-of-way. The facility itself will be surrounded by fencing and will not be
open to the public.

ltem 12. Request for refund of appeal fee.

SRMC 14.24.020E. provides that height exceptions over 5' are referred to the Planning
Commission. SRMC 14.16.360G.3 provides for approval by the Planning Commission or
Acting Zoning Administrator. We concur that for a height of less than 41’, a case could be
made for Acting Zoning Administrator approval for this application. However, SRMC
14.02.020F provides that when there is a conflict in the Code, the more restrictive
controls. Therefore, we feel the appropriate body to have reviewed this application is the
Planning Commission, and we request our appeal fee be refunded.

11



Staff Response: As noted in the Staff Response to Item #3, this application was correctly
reviewed under SRMC 14.16.360, the City’s Telecommunication Ordinance, which is
more specific to this application.

“This section establishes standards to regulate the design and placement of towers,
antennas, and other wireless communication transmission and/or reception facilities
(hereinafter called wireless communication facilities) on public and private property,
including facilities within the public right-of-way to minimize the potential safety and
aesthetic impacts on neighboring property owners and the community, and to comply with
applicable state and federal laws, including the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996.”

SRMC Section 14.16.360 sets out different levels of review that is required for various
types of wireless facilities. Subsection B.2.a of SRMC 14.16.360 requires discretionary
review “for new ground-mounted facilities (towers and monopoles) or significant additions
proposed to existing facilities that would increase its visual height, overall dimensions
and/or lease area (e.g., more than ten-percent increase in the existing permitted height,
overall dimension, lease area,).” It also notes that, “A Acting Zoning Administrator level
use permit and an environmental and design review permit shall be required for the
following wireless communication facilities pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 14.22,
Use Permits, and Chapter 14.25, Environmental and Design Review Permits, consistent
with the provisions of this section.” Therefore, Staff was correct to use the Acting Zoning
Administrator level of discretionary review for this project.

The Appellant chose to file an appeal of the Zoning Administrator’s decision. Per the
Master Fee Sheet, an appeal fee of $300 is required for any appeal and therefore the
appeal fee was appropriate.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of
Regulations, §15000, et seq.) pursuant to Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (New
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures).

CORRESPONDENCE
No correspondence has been received by Staff as of the date of the creation of this Staff
report.

OPTIONS
The Planning Commission has the following options:
1. Adopt the Draft Resolution (Exhibit 1) Denying the Appeal and Affirming the
Decision of the Acting Zoning Administrator to Approve the Project; or
2. Modify the decision of the Acting Zoning Administrator and provide findings to Staff
to in order to Approve the Project with certain modifications, changes, or additional
conditions of approval; or
3. Reverse the decision of the Acting Zoning Administrator and provide findings to
Staff in order to Deny the project. Staff would then prepare a resolution with those

12



findings and return to the Planning Commission at a future date but prior to March
25, 2024.

EXHIBITS

Draft Resolution

Acting Zoning Administrator Minutes — January 17, 2024
Appeal — January 23, 2024

Application Packet — September 26, 2023

Alternative Coverage Map — December 20, 2023

FCC 18-133

Tmoow>

13


https://epermits.cityofsanrafael.org/etrakit3/viewAttachment.aspx?Group=PROJECT&ActivityNo=PLAN21-053&key=SBR%3a2202150349411620

RESOLUTION ##

RESOLUTION OF THE SAN RAFAEL PLANNING COMMISSION AFFIRMING THE
DECISION OF THE ACTING ZONING ADMINISTRATOR AND APPROVING THE WIRELESS
FACILITY LOCATED AT 999 OLD LOCAS VALLEY ROAD, APN: 165-010-03

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2023, the City of San Rafael received Use Permit (UP23-
026) and Minor Environmental Design Review (ED23-059) to install a Freestanding Wireless
Facility at 999 OId Lucas Valley Road, Assessor Parcel Number: 165-010-03 in the (P/OS)
Parks/Open Space zoning district; and

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2023, the Project was determined to be complete by City
Staff: and

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2024, the Project was heard at a duly noticed public hearing
held by the Acting Zoning Administrator. Based on the testimony presented at the hearing and
the information contained in the Application, the Acting Zoning Administrator approved the
Project, subject to the findings and based on the conditions of approval included in Minutes of the
Acting Zoning Administrator Hearing; and

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2024, an Appeal (PLAN24-0014) was submitted to the City of
San Rafael, by Craig Tackabery, John Rojas, Paulette McDevitt, Will Hanamoto, Nicole Love and
Sarah McClendon, Board members of the Mont Marin/San Rafael Park Neighborhood
Association; and

WHEREAS, the San Rafael Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on
the requested Appeal accepting all oral and written public testimony and the written report of the
Community Development Department staff; and

WHEREAS, upon review of the application, the Planning Commission finds that the project
is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA,
Public Resources Code Section 21000, et seq. and California Code of Regulations, Section
15000, et seq.) pursuant to Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (New Construction or
Conversion of Small Structures):

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Planning Commission makes the following
findings relating Use Permit (UP23-026) and Minor Environmental Design Review
(ED23-059):

ENVIRONMENTAL AND DESIGN REVIEW FINDINGS
(ED23-059)

A. The project design is in accord with the general plan, the objectives of the zoning
ordinance and the purposes of this chapter:

Resolution for Appeal of 999 Old Lucas Road Plan24-0014



The project is located in the Parks, Recreation and Open Space General Plan land use
designation. It will provide extended telecommunication services for the surrounding area
per Policy CSI-4.16 of the General Plan 2040. It is also in line with Policy PROS-3.9 as
the new ground-mounted telecommunication facility, using either a faux pine or oak finish
at the height proposed, would minimize adverse effects related to land use compatibility,
visual quality in that it is proposed to be located together on a site that already contains
an existing water tower and another wireless facility, in an otherwise natural open space
area.

The project has also been reviewed as a new ground-mounted telecommunication facility
in accordance with SRMC Section 14.16.360. Projects of this type require review by the
Zoning Administrator, including facilities which exceed the general height requirement for
the zoning district. The project, based on the findings and subject to the conditions
included in this resolution, shall be in accord with the General Plan, the objectives of the
zoning ordinance and the purposes of this chapter.

B. That the project design is consistent with all applicable site, architecture and
landscaping design criteria and guidelines for the district in which the site is
located;

The project design conforms with all applicable site, architecture and landscaping design
criteria and guidelines for the district in which the site is located except for the maximum
height. It will exceed the surrounding height requirement for the Parks/Open Space Zoning
District. This additional height is found to be necessary for the wireless provider to be able
to provide services to its subscribers. Some of the additional height proposed will be
created by faux “crown” of the “monopine”- or “monoak” - type facility, which will partially
hide from view the facility by mimicking a tapered tree silhouette. With the conditions listed
below (Condition No. 12) this is found to be an acceptable aesthetic solution to the
proposed overall height of the project.

C. That the project design minimizes adverse environmental impacts; and

The project design minimizes environmental impacts in that the project has prepared an
Electromagnetic Energy (RF_EME) Compliance Report (RF Report) for the proposed
project which demonstrates that the proposed AT&T installation is in compliance with
Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulations “upon proper installation of
recommended signage and/or barriers” (see Condition No. 14 below).

D. That the project design will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare,
nor materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity.

The design of the proposed project would not be detrimental to the public health, safety
or welfare, nor materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity in that the
project given that an RF Report has been provided which concluded that the site would
operate below the maximum radio-frequency (RF) exposure limit set by the FCC; and it
will require the review and issuance of permits by the City of San Rafael Building Division
and Fire Department. Additionally, the site is located on land owned by the Marin Municipal
Water District with minimal access from the public right-of-way. The facility will be
surrounded by fencing and will not be open to the public.

Resolution for Appeal of 999 Old Lucas Road Plan24-0014



Use Permit Findings
(UP23-026)

A. That the proposed use is in accord with the general plan, the objectives of the
zoning ordinance, and the purposes of the district in which the site is located;

The project is located in the Parks, Recreation and Open Space General Plan land use
designation. It will provide extended telecommunication services for the surrounding area
per Policy CSI-4.16 of the General Plan 2040. It is also in line with Policy PROS-3.9 as
the new ground-mounted telecommunication facility, using either a faux pine or oak finish
at the height proposed, would minimize adverse effects related to land use compatibility,
visual quality in that it is proposed to be located together on a site that already contains
an existing water tower and another wireless facility, in an otherwise natural open space
area.

The project has also been reviewed as a new ground-mounted telecommunication facility
in accordance with SRMC Section 14.16.360. Projects of this type require review by the
Zoning Administrator, including facilities which exceed the general height requirement for
the zoning district. The project, based on the findings and subject to the conditions
included in this resolution, shall be in accord with the General Plan, the objectives of the
zoning ordinance and the purposes of this chapter.

B. That the proposed use together with the conditions will not be detrimental to the
public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to property or improvements
in the vicinity, or the general welfare of the city;

The proposed use, together with the conditions included in this resolution thereto, will not
be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to properties
or improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the city given that an RF Report
has been provided which concluded that the site would operate below the maximum radio-
frequency (RF) exposure limit set by the FCC; and will require the review and issuance of
permits by the City of San Rafael Building Division and Fire Department. Additionally, the
site is located on land owned by the Marin Municipal Water District with minimal access
from the public right-of-way. The facility will be surrounded by fencing and will not be open
to the public.

C. Thatthe proposed use complies with each of the applicable provisions of the zoning
ordinance.

The proposed project has been reviewed as a new ground-mounted telecommunication
facility in accordance with SRMC Section 14.16.360. Projects of this type require review
by the Zoning Administrator, including facilities which exceed the general height
requirement for the zoning district. The proposed use, together with the conditions
included in this resolution thereto, will comply with the applicable provision of the zoning
ordinance.

Resolution for Appeal of 999 Old Lucas Road Plan24-0014



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Planning Division Standard Conditions of Approval

1. Approved Project. This Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and Use
Permit (UP23-026) conditionally approves the installation of a new freestanding wireless
facility for AT&T at 999 Old Lucas Valley Road. Plans submitted for building permit shall
be in substantial conformance to the approved plans dated August 29, 2023, with regard
to building techniques, materials, elevations, and overall project appearance except as
modified by these conditions of approval. Minor modifications or revisions to the project
shall be subject to review and approval by the Community Development Department,
Planning Division. Modifications deemed greater than minor in nature by the Community
Development Director shall require review and approval by the Zoning Administrator.

2. Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations. The approved use and/or construction is
subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable City Ordinances and laws and regulations
of other governmental agencies. Prior to construction, the applicant shall identify and
secure all applicable permits from the Building Division, Public Works Department and
other affected City divisions and departments.

3. Permit Validity. This Permit shall become effective on March 12, 2024 and shall be valid
for a period of two (2) years from the date of final approval or March 12, 2026, and shall
become null and void if a building permit is not issued or a time extension granted by
March 12, 2026. A permit for the construction of a building or structure is deemed
exercised when a valid City building permit, if required, is issued, and construction has
lawfully commenced. A permit for the use of a building or a property is exercised when, if
required, a valid City business license has been issued, and the permitted use has
commenced on the property.

4. Building Permit. Prior to the commencement of work, a building permit shall be obtained
from the Building Division.

5. Construction Hours. Except as otherwise provided in subsection B of the San Rafael
Municipal Code Section 8.13.050, or by the planning commission or city council as part of
the development review for the project, on any construction project on property within the
city, construction, alteration, demolition, maintenance of construction equipment,
deliveries of materials or equipment, or repair activities otherwise allowed under applicable
law shall be allowed between the hours of seven a.m. (7:00 a.m.) and six p.m. (6:00 p.m.),
Monday through Friday, and nine a.m. (9:00 a.m.) and six p.m. (6:00 p.m.) on Saturdays,
provided that the noise level at any point outside of the property plane of the project shall
not exceed ninety (90) dBA. All such activities shall be precluded on Sundays and
holidays. Violation of the foregoing may subject the permittee to suspension of work by
the chief building official for up to two (2) days per violation.

6. Colors, Materials, and Lighting. Colors, materials and lighting shall be designed to avoid
creating undue off-site light and glare impacts. New or amended building or site colors,
materials and lighting shall comply with San Rafael Municipal Code Section 14.16.227,

Resolution for Appeal of 999 Old Lucas Road Plan24-0014



subject to review and recommendation by the police department, public works department,
and community development department.

7. Exterior Lightning. Any exterior lighting shall be subject to a 90-day post installation
inspection to allow for adjustment and assure compliance with San Rafael Municipal Code
Section 14.16.227 - Light and glare. The project proponent is responsible for hiring a
qualified lighting expert to conduct the inspection and to prepare a summary analysis
verifying the projects meets City standards to be submitted to the Planning Division.

8. Rooftop Equipment. Equipment placed on the rooftop of a building or in an exterior yard
area shall be adequately screened from public view. See Chapter 14.16 for exclusions to
maximum height requirements and Chapter 14.25 for design review requirements.

9. Temporary Fences. Temporary security fences may be erected around construction sites
during the time a valid building permit is in effect for construction on the premises.
Temporary security fences need not comply with San Rafael Municipal Section 14.16.140
and must be immediately removed upon completion of the construction authorized by the
building permit.

10. Landscape Maintenance. All landscaping shall be maintained in good condition and any
dead or dying plants, bushes, trees, or groundcover plantings shall be replaced with new
healthy stock of a size appropriate and compatible with the remainder of the growth at the
time of replacement.

11. Approved Materials and Colors. The approved materials and colors for the project shall
be indicated on project plans submitted for building permit and implemented in the field.
Any changes in materials or colors shall be subject to prior review and approval by the
City Planning Division, and a determination as to whether the change is major or minor.
Any changes to the approved materials or colors shall be clearly indicated on plans and
receive written verification that this change has been reviewed and approved by the
Planning Division.

ED23-059 Conditions of Approval

12. Screening Method. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit a
revised faux tree-type design to better mimic a tree type native to the area (i.e. oak). The
Community Development Director shall review the faux pine and the faux oak design and
select the option most appropriate for the site. The applicant shall revise the building
permit to include that selection.

13. Equipment Revision. No future revision of wireless equipment (e.g. antenna, coax or
appurtenance) shall be changed out for a like piece of equipment without painting it to
match.

14. Signage. Proposed signage shall include the signage recommended in the Radio
Frequency — Electromagnetic Energy (RF_EME) Compliance Report (dated August 19,
2022) to conform with FCC regulations.

Resolution for Appeal of 999 Old Lucas Road Plan24-0014



15. All site improvements shall be maintained in good, undamaged conditions at all times. The
antenna shall be maintained, and any weathered portions shall be repaired in a timely
manner to ensure visual quality (refer to Condition No. 13).

UP23-026 Conditions of Approval

16. The Use Permit (UP23-026) approving a new AT&T site build of an unmanned
telecommunications facility consisting of a lease area with associated ground-mounted
equipment shelter and generator and utilities to the site location; and a “monopine”/
“monoak” type facility with associated antennas and antenna equipment. The size, colors,
and materials shall be as shown on the plan set dated August 29, 2023. This Use Permit
(UP23-026) shall run concurrently with the associated Environmental and Design Review
Permit (ED23-059). Should the Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059)
expire, the Use Permit (UP23-026) shall also expire and become invalid.

17. Facility Maintenance. The service provider shall properly maintain this facility during the
life of the permit. In the event the wireless antennas become obsolete and abandoned, all
wireless antennas and associated accessory structures shall be removed from the subject
property within thirty (30) days of abandonment. The service provider shall notify the
Planning and Building Divisions within ten (10) days of abandonment. The removal of the
entire facility shall take place within twenty (20) days of the notification of the abandonment
and shall be restored to the design prior to the installation of the wireless antennas. Failure
to remove the equipment shall be subject to action by the City’s Code Enforcement
Division.

18. Notification of Abandonment of Use. The applicant, or its successor, shall remove any
abandoned facility or restore existing approved use of a facility within 90 days of
termination of use.

19. Validation of Proper Operation. AT&T (or its successors) shall submit the results of the
post-installation testing to the Community Development Department, Planning Division.
The testing shall be conducted once the antennas and equipment are installed and
operating at maximum capacity. The testing shall entail verification of compliance with the
FCC’s Radio Frequency (RF) emission standards. This testing shall be conducted during
normal business hours and on non-holiday weekdays with the facility operating at
maximum power. The telecommunication provider, or its successor, shall provide the
Community Development Director with a report of the tests results.

20. Five Year Review. Every five (5) years, the wireless telecommunications provider, or its
successor(s), shall measure the RFR of the facility approved by this Environmental and
Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and Use Permit (UP23-026). The City may contract to
perform the independent testing with a qualified expert and the current wireless
telecommunications provider, or its successor(s), shall bear the proportionate cost of
testing for the wireless telecommunications facility approved by this Environmental and
Design Review Permit and Use Permit.

a. Testing must be coordinated with and may be observed by the City or its
representative. The test measurement observations shall be recorded in a written
report prepared by AT&T or its contractor and shall specify the location of the

Resolution for Appeal of 999 Old Lucas Road Plan24-0014



measurement, the peak measured signal strength in units of mW/cm? and shall be
correlated to the plan view of the project plans on Sheet A-5. The report shall also
provide full measurement equipment identification, current calibration certificate(s)
for all equipment, and the qualifications of the person(s) conducting the test.

b. AT&T shall tender its written report documenting the testing and observations to
the City for review prior to unattended operations of its project. The City shall within
fourteen (14) business days notify AT&T by writing whether the testing
demonstrates compliance with FCC OET Bulletin 65 RF emissions safety
standards under the General Population/Uncontrolled standard, and such
notification shall not be unreasonably withheld. Upon the City’s notification, AT&T
may commence unattended operation of its project.

c. AT&T shall promptly reimburse the City for all of the City’s actual costs in observing
the testing and reviewing the report for compliance with the FCC OET Bulletin 65
RF safety requirements, and if necessary for verifying any subsequent remedial
measures required to secure areas on the roof as required in these conditions.

21. Changes Affecting RF. Any operational or technological changes to an approved wireless
communication facility affecting RFR exposures shall be reported promptly to the City,
including any change of ownership. The City may require new RFR testing within 45 days
of notification.

22. Changes to FCC Standards. In the event the FCC changes their standards, the owner or
operator of an approved wireless facility shall make necessary changes or upgrades to
their facilities in order to comply with any newly adopted FCC standards for RFR. The
upgrades to facilities shall be made no later than 90 days after notification of the changed
FCC standards and the owner or operator shall notify the city in writing that the upgrades
have been completed.

23. Iftechnology improvements allow for the use of materially smaller or less visually obtrusive
antennas and screening equipment, or equipment that generates less RF emissions, the
current wireless telecommunication provider, or its successors, shall replace or upgrade
the antennas and screening design. In the event of replacement or upgrading, the owner
or operator of an approved wireless facility may be required to obtain a new Environmental
and Design Review Permit and/or Use Permit with associated fees.

24. After transmitter and antenna system optimization, but prior to unattended operations of
this project, AT&T or its representative must conduct on-site post-installation RF
emissions testing to demonstrate actual compliance with the FCC OET Bulletin 65 RF
emissions safety rules for General Population/Uncontrolled RF exposure in all sectors.
For this testing, the transmitter shall be operating at maximum operating power, and the
testing shall occur outwards to a distance where the RF emissions no longer exceed the
Uncontrolled/General Population limit.

25. Full initial and ongoing compliance with all FCC RF safety rules in OET Bulletin 65 (as
may be amended or superseded or replaced) is a continuing material requirement and
condition of this Permit.

Resolution for Appeal of 999 Old Lucas Road Plan24-0014



26. Future Co-Location. Per SRMC Section 14.16.360.D.9 all new ground-mounted towers or
monopoles, require a signed statement that the carrier, or its future successors, will
cooperate with the city to allow future co-location of antennas at the proposed site if it is
approved and that the carrier has reviewed and agrees to comply with all post-approval
requirements of this section. This agreement is required to be created an executed prior
to the final inspection of the building permit.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted at the regular City of San Rafael Planning Commission
meeting held on the 11th day of July, 2023. The Planning Commission’s Action is final unless it
is appealed to the City Council within five (5) working days pursuant to San Rafael Municipal
Code Section 14.28.030 - Filing and time limit of appeals

Moved by and seconded by . The vote is as follows:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

SAN RAFAEL PLANNING COMMISSION

ATTEST: BY:
Margaret Kavanaugh-Lynch, Jon Haveman, Chair

Secretary

Resolution for Appeal of 999 Old Lucas Road Plan24-0014



J4[6.) SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A

SAN RAFAEL ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
REGULAR HEARING
January 17, 2024

Minutes and Notice of Decision
(Pursuant to San Rafael Municipal Code 14.28.050)

10:00 —10:45am 1. 999 Old Lucas Valley Road - Requests for a Conditional Use
Permit and Minor Environmental and Design Review Permit to
install a new freestanding wireless facility for AT&T at 999 Old
Lucas Valley Road; 165-010-03; Parks/Open Space Zoning District
(P/OS); MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, Owner; Don
Shiveley, Applicant; File No: ED23-059/UP23-026/TEL23-003
(PLAN23-134)

Project Planner: Renee Nickenig, Associate Planner

PERMITS REQUIRED

¢ Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059)/Conditional Use Permit
(UP23-026). Pursuant to San Rafael Municipal Code (SRMC) Section
14.16.360.B.2.a, a zoning administrator level use permit and a minor environmental
and design review permit are required for new ground-mounted facilities.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The subject site is located within Jerry Russom Memorial Park, south of Lucas Valley Road
and Miller Creek. The site is accessed from Water Tank Fire Road, which connects Old Lucas
Valley Road to the north and Springs Hill Rife Road at the south. The Site has an existing
water tank operated by the Marin Municipal Water District, and several existing cell towers.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The project proposes to install a new, freestanding wireless telecommunications facility north
of the existing water tank at 999 Old Lucas Valley Road. The proposed facility would be a
freestanding, “monopine” style stealth wireless facility with screening mimicking the
surrounding tree types extending a maximum of 56 feet above the existing grade. A total of
12 panel antennas are proposed to be mounted on the pole, a maximum 49 feet above
existing grade.

The “monopine” would be placed within a 25-foot by 25-foot concrete platform surrounded by
a 6’ tall chain link fence. The ground equipment would include an eight (8)-foot by eight (8)-
foot walk-in equipment cabinet and a 30 kW diesel emergency backup generator and 190
gallon fuel tank.



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

PUBLIC HEARING

On January 17, 2024, a Zoning Administrator hearing was convened for this Environmental
and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and Conditional Use Permit (UP23-026). The Acting
Zoning Administrator for this meeting, Margaret Kavanaugh-Lynch, opened the hearing at

10:00 am.

A. Planner Presentation
The Project Planner, Renee Nickenig, provided an overview of the proposed project, the
project findings for approval, and the draft project conditions.

B. Applicant presentation
The applicant, Kevin Gallagher, was present at the meeting. The applicant presented the
project and addressed concerns and questions on the project, including feasibility of co-
location and the reasoning for proposing an over height facility.

C. Public Comments
Craig Tachabery was present at the meeting to represent the Mont Marin/San Rafael Park
Neighborhood Association. He shared a list of concerns, including:

1.

2.

The tower will be very visible above the existing vegetation. Can it be lower and
less conspicuous?

The project proposes to use Old Lucas Valley Road and a proposed easement for
construction and continuing maintenance. Old Lucas Valley is not being
adequately maintained and is continuing to deteriorate, both the surface and the
adjacent slopes below and above the road. Please provide a requirement that the
applicant and other easement holders enter into a long-term maintenance
agreement.

This level of review should be completed by the Planning Commission, not the
Zoning Administrator.

. A pine tree is an inappropriate species to use in this location. An oak tree would

be more appropriate as the site is located in a group of oak trees.

D. Zoning Administrator Discussion
A discussion took place between the Zoning Administrator, the Associate Planner, the
member of the public and the Applicant:

1.

2.

J4[6.) SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A

The Applicant noted that the proposed height of the tower is the minimum height
possible to provide essential to meet the service demands of the carrier.

The Acting Zoning Administrator noted that it was not legally possible to require
the Applicant to maintain the access road, owned by others, however any damage
caused by the construction or maintenance of the facility would be the
responsibility of the Applicant.

The Associate Planner and the Acting Zoning Administrator reviewed and
discussed the sections of the municipal code that applied to the application. The



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

Associate Planner noted that this level of review had also been discussed with the
former Director of Community Development Department and the City’s legal
counsel. Staff confirmed that Zoning Administrator was an appropriate body of
decision.

4. The Applicant and staff discussed the issue regarding use of a pine versus oak
tree and the Applicant agreed that either type of installation would be acceptable
to his client.

The Acting Zoning Administrator closed the public hearing.

E. Action
The Zoning Administrator Approved the request for an Environmental and Design Review
Permit (ED23-059) and Conditional Use Permit (UP23-026) subject to the conditions listed
below.

These conditions of approval are listed below and included as part of the Zoning
Administrators decision.

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:45 am.
FINDINGS

CEQA Findings

The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of Regulations,
§15000, et seq.) pursuant to Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (New Construction or
Conversion of Small Structures). Furthermore, none of the exceptions found in Government
Code §15300.2 apply.

Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) Findings (SRMC §14.25.090)

A. That the project design is in accord with the general plan, the objectives of the
zoning ordinance and the purposes of this chapter;

The property is in the Parks, Rec., and Open Space General Plan land use
designation. The new equipment will be located at a site with previously approved
telecommunication facilities. The design of the new facility has been reviewed
pursuant to SRMC § 14.16.120 as the pole will extend above the established building
height limit for the zoning district.

The proposed new facility will provide extended telecommunication services for the
surrounding area per Policy CSI-4.16 of the General Plan 2040.

B. That the project design is consistent with all applicable site, architecture and
landscaping design criteria and guidelines for the district in which the site is
located,;

J4[6.) SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

The project design will exceed the surrounding height requirement for the Parks/Open
Space Zoning District. Additional height is proposed to account for the faux “crown” of
the “monopine”- or “monoak” - type facility, which will lend to the facility mimicking a
tapered tree silhouette. With the conditions listed below (Condition No. 12) this is found
to be an acceptable aesthetic solution to the proposed overall height.

. That the project design minimizes adverse environmental impacts; and

The project design minimizes environmental impacts in that the project has prepared
an Electromagnetic Energy (RF_EME) Compliance Report (RF Report) for the
proposed project which demonstrates that the proposed AT&T installation is in
compliance with Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulations “upon
proper installation of recommended signage and/or barriers” (see Condition No. 14
below).

. That the project design will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or

welfare, nor materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity.

The design of the proposed project would not be detrimental to the public health, safety
or welfare, nor materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity in that
the project will require City of San Rafael Building Division and Fire Department.
Additionally, the site is located on privately-owned land with minimal access from the
public right-of-way. The facility will be surrounded by fencing and will not be open to
the public.

Use Permit (UP23-026) Findings (SRMC §14.22.080)

A.

i

That the proposed use is in accord with the general plan, the objectives of the
zoning ordinance, and the purposed of the district in which the site is located;

The proposed use is in accord with the San Rafael General Plan 2020, the objectives
of the zoning ordinance, and the purposes of the district the site is located in, as
discussed in ED23-059 Finding A, listed above.

That the proposed use together with the conditions will not be detrimental to
the public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to property or
improvements in the vicinity, or the general welfare of the city;

The proposed use, together with the conditions applicable thereto, will not be
detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to properties
or improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the city given that: 1) an
RF Report has been provided which concluded that the site would operate below the
maximum radio-frequency (RF) exposure limit set by the FCC; and 2) installation of
the proposed equipment will be subject to Building Department review and approval,
per ED23-059.

SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

C. That the proposed use complies with each of the applicable provisions of the

zoning ordinance.

The proposed project has been reviewed as a new ground-mounted
telecommunication facility in accordance with SRMC § 14.16.360. Projects of this type
require review by the Zoning Administrator, including facilities which exceed the
general height requirement for the zoning district.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Planning Division Standard Conditions of Approval

1.

i

Approved Project. This Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and
Use Permit (UP23-026) conditionally approves the installation of a new
freestanding wireless facility for AT&T at 999 Old Lucas Valley Road. Plans
submitted for building permit shall be in substantial conformance to the approved
plans dated August 29, 2023, with regard to building techniques, materials,
elevations, and overall project appearance except as modified by these conditions
of approval. Minor modifications or revisions to the project shall be subject to
review and approval by the Community Development Department, Planning
Division. Modifications deemed greater than minor in nature by the Community
Development Director shall require review and approval by the Zoning
Administrator.

Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations. The approved use and/or
construction is subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable City Ordinances and
laws and regulations of other governmental agencies. Prior to construction, the
applicant shall identify and secure all applicable permits from the Building Division,
Public Works Department and other affected City divisions and departments.

Permit Validity. This Permit shall become effective on January 25, 2024 and shall
be valid for a period of two (2) years from the date of final approval or January 25,
2026, and shall become null and void if a building permit is not issued or a time
extension granted by January 25, 2026. A permit for the construction of a building
or structure is deemed exercised when a valid City building permit, if required, is
issued, and construction has lawfully commenced. A permit for the use of a
building or a property is exercised when, if required, a valid City business license
has been issued, and the permitted use has commenced on the property.

Building Permit. Prior to the commencement of work, a building permit shall be
obtained from the Building Division.

Construction Hours. Except as otherwise provided in subsection B of the San
Rafael Municipal Code Section 8.13.050, or by the planning commission or city

SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

10.

11.

J4[6.) SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A

council as part of the development review for the project, on any construction
project on property within the city, construction, alteration, demolition,
maintenance of construction equipment, deliveries of materials or equipment, or
repair activities otherwise allowed under applicable law shall be allowed between
the hours of seven a.m. (7:00 a.m.) and six p.m. (6:00 p.m.), Monday through
Friday, and nine a.m. (9:00 a.m.) and six p.m. (6:00 p.m.) on Saturdays, provided
that the noise level at any point outside of the property plane of the project shall
not exceed ninety (90) dBA. All such activities shall be precluded on Sundays and
holidays. Violation of the foregoing may subject the permittee to suspension of
work by the chief building official for up to two (2) days per violation.

Colors, Materials, and Lighting. Colors, materials and lighting shall be designed to
avoid creating undue off-site light and glare impacts. New or amended building or
site colors, materials and lighting shall comply with San Rafael Municipal Code
Section 14.16.227, subject to review and recommendation by the police
department, public works department, and community development department.

Exterior Lightning. Any exterior lighting shall be subject to a 90-day post installation
inspection to allow for adjustment and assure compliance with San Rafael
Municipal Code Section 14.16.227 - Light and glare. The project proponent is
responsible for hiring a qualified lighting expert to conduct the inspection and to
prepare a summary analysis verifying the projects meets City standards to be
submitted to the Planning Division.

Rooftop Equipment. Equipment placed on the rooftop of a building or in an exterior
yard area shall be adequately screened from public view. See Chapter 14.16 for
exclusions to maximum height requirements and_Chapter 14.25 for design review
requirements.

Temporary Fences. Temporary security fences may be erected around
construction sites during the time a valid building permit is in effect for construction
on the premises. Temporary security fences need not comply with San Rafael
Municipal Section 14.16.140 and must be immediately removed upon completion
of the construction authorized by the building permit.

Landscape Maintenance. All landscaping shall be maintained in good condition
and any dead or dying plants, bushes, trees, or groundcover plantings shall be
replaced with new healthy stock of a size appropriate and compatible with the
remainder of the growth at the time of replacement.

Approved Materials and Colors. The approved materials and colors for the project
shall be indicated on project plans submitted for building permit and implemented
in the field. Any changes in materials or colors shall be subject to prior review and
approval by the City Planning Division, and a determination as to whether the
change is major or minor. Any changes to the approved materials or colors shall



https://library.municode.com/ca/san_rafael/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT14ZO_DIVIVREAPALSEDI_CH14.16SIUSRE_14.16.227LIGL
https://library.municode.com/ca/san_rafael/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT14ZO_DIVIVREAPALSEDI_CH14.16SIUSRE_14.16.227LIGL
https://library.municode.com/ca/san_rafael/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT14ZO_DIVIVREAPALSEDI_CH14.16SIUSRE
https://library.municode.com/ca/san_rafael/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT14ZO_DIVVADRE_CH14.25ENDEREPE
https://library.municode.com/ca/san_rafael/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT14ZO_DIVIVREAPALSEDI_CH14.16SIUSRE_14.16.140FEWA

ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

be clearly indicated on plans and receive written verification that this change has
been reviewed and approved by the Planning Division.

ED23-059 Conditions of Approval

12.

13.

14.

15.

Screening Method. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit
a revised faux tree-type design to better mimic a tree type native to the area (i.e.
oak). The Community Development Director shall review the faux pine and the
faux oak design and select the option most appropriate for the site. The applicant
shall revise the building permit to include that selection.

Equipment Revision. No future revision of wireless equipment (e.g. antenna, coax
or appurtenance) shall be changed out for a like piece of equipment without
painting it to match.

Signage. Proposed signage shall include the signage recommended in the Radio
Frequency — Electromagnetic Energy (RF_EME) Compliance Report (dated
August 19, 2022) to conform with FCC regulations.

All site improvements shall be maintained in good, undamaged conditions at all
times. The antenna shall be maintained, and any weathered portions shall be
repaired in a timely manner to ensure visual quality (refer to Condition No. 13).

UP23-026 Conditions of Approval

16.

17.

J4[6.) SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A

The Use Permit (UP23-026) approving a new AT&T site build of an unmanned
telecommunications facility consisting of a lease area with associated ground-
mounted equipment shelter and generator and utilities to the site location; and a
‘monopine”/ “monoak” type facility with associated antennas and antenna
equipment. The size, colors, and materials shall be as shown on the plan set dated
August 29, 2023. This Use Permit (UP23-026) shall run concurrently with the
associated Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059). Should the
Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) expire, the Use Permit
(UP23-026) shall also expire and become invalid.

Facility Maintenance. The service provider shall properly maintain this facility
during the life of the permit. In the event the wireless antennas become obsolete
and abandoned, all wireless antennas and associated accessory structures shall
be removed from the subject property within thirty (30) days of abandonment. The
service provider shall notify the Planning and Building Divisions within ten (10)
days of abandonment. The removal of the entire facility shall take place within
twenty (20) days of the notification of the abandonment and shall be restored to
the design prior to the installation of the wireless antennas. Failure to remove the
equipment shall be subject to action by the City’s Code Enforcement Division.




ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

18.

19.

20.

J4[6.) SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A

Notification of Abandonment of Use. The applicant, or its successor, shall remove
any abandoned facility or restore existing approved use of a facility within 90 days
of termination of use.

Validation of Proper Operation. AT&T (or its successors) shall submit the results
of the post-installation testing to the Community Development Department,
Planning Division. The testing shall be conducted once the antennas and
equipment are installed and operating at maximum capacity. The testing shall
entail verification of compliance with the FCC’s Radio Frequency (RF) emission
standards. This testing shall be conducted during normal business hours and on
non-holiday weekdays with the facility operating at maximum power. The
telecommunication provider, or its successor, shall provide the Community
Development Director with a report of the tests results.

Five Year Review. Every five (5) years, the wireless telecommunications provider,
or its successor(s), shall measure the RFR of the facility approved by this
Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and Use Permit (UP23-
026). The City may contract to perform the independent testing with a qualified
expert and the current wireless telecommunications provider, or its successor(s),
shall bear the proportionate cost of testing for the wireless telecommunications
facility approved by this Environmental and Design Review Permit and Use Permit.

a. Testing must be coordinated with and may be observed by the City or its
representative. The test measurement observations shall be recorded in a
written report prepared by AT&T or its contractor and shall specify the
location of the measurement, the peak measured signal strength in units of
mW/cm? and shall be correlated to the plan view of the project plans on Sheet
A-5. The report shall also provide full measurement equipment identification,
current calibration certificate(s) for all equipment, and the qualifications of the
person(s) conducting the test.

b. AT&T shall tender its written report documenting the testing and observations
to the City for review prior to unattended operations of its project. The City
shall within fourteen (14) business days notify AT&T by writing whether the
testing demonstrates compliance with FCC OET Bulletin 65 RF emissions
safety standards under the General Population/Uncontrolled standard, and
such notification shall not be unreasonably withheld. Upon the City’s
notification, AT&T may commence unattended operation of its project.

c. AT&T shall promptly reimburse the City for all of the City’s actual costs in
observing the testing and reviewing the report for compliance with the FCC
OET Bulletin 65 RF safety requirements, and if necessary for verifying any
subsequent remedial measures required to secure areas on the roof as
required in these conditions.



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Changes Affecting RF. Any operational or technological changes to an approved
wireless communication facility affecting RFR exposures shall be reported
promptly to the City, including any change of ownership. The City may require new
RFR testing within 45 days of notification.

Changes to FCC Standards. In the event the FCC changes their standards, the
owner or operator of an approved wireless facility shall make necessary changes
or upgrades to their facilities in order to comply with any newly adopted FCC
standards for RFR. The upgrades to facilities shall be made no later than 90 days
after notification of the changed FCC standards and the owner or operator shall
notify the city in writing that the upgrades have been completed.

If technology improvements allow for the use of materially smaller or less visually
obtrusive antennas and screening equipment, or equipment that generates less
RF emissions, the current wireless telecommunication provider, or its successors,
shall replace or upgrade the antennas and screening design. In the event of
replacement or upgrading, the owner or operator of an approved wireless facility
may be required to obtain a new Environmental and Design Review Permit and/or
Use Permit with associated fees.

After transmitter and antenna system optimization, but prior to unattended
operations of this project, AT&T or its representative must conduct on-site post-
installation RF emissions testing to demonstrate actual compliance with the FCC
OET Bulletin 65 RF emissions safety rules for General Population/Uncontrolled
RF exposure in all sectors. For this testing, the transmitter shall be operating at
maximum operating power, and the testing shall occur outwards to a distance
where the RF emissions no longer exceed the Uncontrolled/General Population
limit.

Full initial and ongoing compliance with all FCC RF safety rules in OET Bulletin
65 (as may be amended or superseded or replaced) is a continuing material
requirement and condition of this Permit.

Future Co-Location. Per SRMC Section 14.16.360.D.9 all new ground-mounted
towers or monopoles, require a signed statement that the carrier, or its future
successors, will cooperate with the city to allow future co-location of antennas at
the proposed site if it is approved and that the carrier has reviewed and agrees
to comply with all post-approval requirements of this section. This agreement is
required to be created an executed prior to the final inspection of the building
permit.

ACTION TAKEN: On January 17, 2024, the Zoning Administrator Conditionally

Approved the requested Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and
Conditional Use Permit (UP23-026) subject to the Findings and Conditions above.

i

SAN RAFAEL

THE CITY WITH A



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

This Notice of Zoning Administrator decision is provided in compliance with SRMC Section
14.28.050 - Notice of decision. Any aggrieved party may appeal this decision pursuant to
SRMC Section 14.28.030 - Filing and time limit of appeals, by submitting a letter of appeal
and the appropriate fees within five (5) working days of the date of approval, or by January
24, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. This approval shall become effective at the end of the appeal period.

Once a permit approval has been implemented/established in compliance with all City

requirements, it shall run with the land and be valid for the time period specified; e.g., duration
of the project/use.

WKW’W January 19,2024

Margaret Kavanaugh-Lynch, Acting Zoning Administrator Date

SAN RAFAEL 10

THE CITY WITH A MISS




MONT MARIN/SAN RAFAEL PARK NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION
MMSRP_ADMIN@MONTMARIN.ORG
PO BOX 6662, SAN RAFAEL, CA 94903

January 23, 2024

Renee Nickenig

Associate Planner

Community Development Department
City of San Rafael

¢/o Planning Commission
renee.nickenig@cityofsanrafael.org

Appeal to Planning Commission of Zoning Administrator Approval Requests for a Conditional Use Permit
and Minor Environmental and Design Review Permit to

install a new freestanding wireless facility for AT&T at 999 Old Lucas Valley Road; 165-010-03;
Parks/Open Space Zoning District (P/OS); MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, Owner; Don

Shiveley, Applicant; File No: ED23-059/UP23-026/TEL23-003 (PLAN23-134)

Dear Renee,

Please find this timely appeal under San Rafael Municipal Code 14.28.010B. for the above project.
Rachel Kertz, a member of the Board, recused herself from our discussions and from providing input on
this appeal.

The Board is supportive of approved cellular communication for this area, for both regular
communication and emergency communication. However, we are troubled by many aspects of this
project, and are concerned about the permanent changes to the visual landscape in the Open Space and
Jerry Russom Park.

We have reviewed the January 17, 2024 Minutes and Notice of Decision, and the staff analysis contained
therein, and feel they don’t adequately address the concerns in a few key areas. No staff report or
materials were provided to the public in advance of the hearing. As you can see from the attached
agenda, it would be difficult for the public to understand the tower height and the number of towers
being contemplated.

San Rafael Municipal Code (SRMC) 14.10 Parks/Open Space provide specifics about uses. SRMC
14.10.010G. provides that one of the purposes is to “discourage public utility facilities in open space areas
to minimize harm to the area’s visual quality.”

SRMC 14.10.030 provides a maximum height of 36', with exceptions allowed subject to the provisions of
Chapter 14.24. SRMC 14.24E. provides for height increases, where “necessary for health or safety
purposes, and may only be approved where scenic views are not adversely affected, and where
exceptional design is provided, and if more than 5’, must be approved by the Planning Commission.
Findings were not made regarding these issues in the Notice of Decision.



Finding D. refers to “privately owned land.” The site is public land, owned by the Marin Municipal Water
District.

Request for refund of appeal fee.

SRMC 14.24.020E. provides that height exceptions over 5' are referred to the Planning Commission. SRMC
14.16.360G.3 provides for approval by the Planning Commission or Zoning Administrator. We concur that
for a height of less than 41’, a case could be made for Zoning Administrator approval for this application.
However, SRMC 14.02.020F provides that when there is a conflict in the Code, the more restrictive
controls. Therefore, we feel the appropriate body to have reviewed this application is the Planning
Commission, and we request our appeal fee be refunded.

Sincerely,

Craig Tackabery
John Rojas
Paulette McDevitt
Will Hanamoto
Nicole Love

Sarah McClendon

Board members

Copy: Agenda
Minutes and Notice of Decision



From: Renee Nickenig

To: Craig Tackabery
Subject: Re: PLAN23-134
Date: Thursday, January 25, 2024 9:15:16 AM
Attachments: look-bflhvx3v
Qutlook-kqyryi2x.png
look-ywrkip2v.
Outlook-v044uwvx.png
Hello Craig,

Thank you for sending. | will include this with the earlier submittal.

Thank you,
Renee

Renee Nickenig | City of San Rafael

Associate Planner, Community Development Department
1400 5t Avenue, 3 floor

San Rafael, CA 94901

415-485-3397

i) SAN RAFAEL

THE CHY WITH A MISSION

From: Craig Tackabery <ctackabery@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 4:56 PM

To: Renee Nickenig <renee.nickenig@cityofsanrafael.org>
Subject: Fwd: PLAN23-134

Hi Renee, we would like to add these additional comments to the appeal:
The minutes reflect:

2. The Acting Zoning Administrator noted that it was not legally possible to require
the Applicant to maintain the access road, owned by others, however any damage
caused by the construction or maintenance of the facility would be the
responsibility of the Applicant.

The Zoning Administrator legal determination was not based on any statute or case law identified at the
meeting.

Maintaining shared driveways is an important issue to address during the entitlement process.
Particularly a driveway that also provides public access. The only section of SRMC that we found that
addresses this directly is in 15.06.040. Since the subdividing of the lot occurred previously it may not
be directly applicable with this application. It may have been addressed previously during that process,
and may show up in a title report.

[f not, the issue is important and should be considered now with this process to entitle additional users
of the easement connecting to Old Lucas Valley Road, and along Old Lucas Valley Road through Jerry
Russom Park.



San Rafael, CA 94901
415-485-3397

&) SAN RAFAEL

THE CHTY WITH A MISSION

From: Craig Tackabery <ctackabery@gmail.com>

Sent: Saturday, January 13, 2024 10:20 AM

To: Renee Nickenig <Renee.Nickenig@cityofsanrafael.org>

Subject: Re: PLAN23-134

Thanks Renee, | see the agenda for Wednesday. Will the City be posting a staff report?

On Fri, Jan 12, 2024 at 10:17 AM Renee Nickenig <Renee.Nickenig@cityofsanrafael.org> wrote:

Hello Craig,

Please see responses below.

Renee Nickenig | City of San Rafael

Associate Planner, Community Development Department
1400 5™ Avenue, 3" floor

San Rafael, CA 94901

415-485-3397

/) SAN RAFAEL

THE CHIY WITIH A MISSION

From: Renee Nickenig <renee.nickenig @cityofsanrafael.org>

Sent: Thursday, January 11, 2024 9:30 AM

To: Craig Tackabery <ctackabery@gmail.com>
Subject: RE: PLAN23-134

Good Morning Craig,
Thank you for your questions. | will review today and respond as soon as possible.
Thank you,

Renee Nickenig | City of San Rafael

Associate Planner, Community Development Department
1400 51 Avenue, 3™ floor

San Rafael, CA 94901

415-485-3397



Craig Tackabery

Craig Tackabery



Zoning Administrator Hearing
Wednesday, January 17, 2024
10:00 AM

Join In-Person Meeting:
Community Development Small Meeting
Room, San Rafael City Hall

1400 Fifth Avenue, 3"
Floor,
San Rafael, CA 94901

Join Virtual Meeting:
Zoom Website/App: http://tinyurl.com/ZA-Hearing-2024
or
Telephone: (669) 444-9171
Webinar ID: 827 0869 6241#

Agenda

1. 999 Old Lucas Valley Road — PLAN23-134 (ED23-059/UP23-026)

Requests for a Conditional Use Permit and Minor Environmental and Design
Review Permit to install a new freestanding wireless facility for AT&T at 999 Old
Lucas Valley Road.

2. Adjournment



~ ) SAN RAFAEL

S THE CITY WITH A MISSION

SAN RAFAEL ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
REGULAR HEARING
January 17, 2024

Minutes and Notice of Decision
(Pursuant to San Rafael Municipal Code 14.28.050)

10:00-10:45am 1. 999 Old Lucas Valley Road - Requests for a Conditional Use
Permit and Minor Environmental and Design Review Permit to
install a new freestanding wireless facility for AT&T at 999 Old
Lucas Valley Road; 165-010-03; Parks/Open Space Zoning District
(P/OS); MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, Owner; Don
Shiveley, Applicant; File No: ED23-059/UP23-026/TEL23-003
(PLAN23-134)

Project Planner: Renee Nickenig, Associate Planner

PERMITS REQUIRED

¢ Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059)/Conditional Use Permit
(UP23-026). Pursuant to San Rafael Municipal Code (SRMC) Section
14.16.360.B.2.a, a zoning administrator level use permit and a minor environmental
and design review permit are required for new ground-mounted facilities.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The subject site is located within Jerry Russom Memorial Park, south of Lucas Valley Road
and Miller Creek. The site is accessed from Water Tank Fire Road, which connects Old Lucas
Valley Road to the north and Springs Hill Rife Road at the south. The Site has an existing
water tank operated by the Marin Municipal Water District, and several existing cell towers.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The project proposes to install a new, freestanding wireless telecommunications facility north
of the existing water tank at 999 Old Lucas Valley Road. The proposed facility would be a
freestanding, “monopine” style stealth wireless facility with screening mimicking the
surrounding tree types extending a maximum of 56 feet above the existing grade. A total of
12 panel antennas are proposed to be mounted on the pole, a maximum 49 feet above
existing grade.

The “monopine” would be placed within a 25-foot by 25-foot concrete platform surrounded by
a 6’ tall chain link fence. The ground equipment would include an eight (8)-foot by eight (8)-
foot walk-in equipment cabinet and a 30 kW diesel emergency backup generator and 190
gallon fuel tank.



Z A Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

PUBLIC HEARING

On January 17, 2024, a Zoning Administrator hearing was convened for this Environmental
and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and Conditional Use Permit (UP23-026). The Acting
Zoning Administrator for this meeting, Margaret Kavanaugh-Lynch, opened the hearing at
10:00 am.

A. Planner Presentation
The Project Planner, Renee Nickenig, provided an overview of the proposed project, the
project findings for approval, and the draft project conditions.

B. Applicant presentation
The applicant, Kevin Gallagher, was present at the meeting. The applicant presented the
project and addressed concerns and questions on the project, including feasibility of co-
location and the reasoning for proposing an over height facility.

C. Public Comments
Craig Tachabery was present at the meeting to represent the Mont Marin/San Rafael Park
Neighborhood Association. He shared a list of concerns, including:

1. The tower will be very visible above the existing vegetation. Can it be lower and
less conspicuous?

2. The project proposes to use Old Lucas Valley Road and a proposed easement for
construction and continuing maintenance. Old Lucas Valley is not being
adequately maintained and is continuing to deteriorate, both the surface and the
adjacent slopes below and above the road. Please provide a requirement that the
applicant and other easement holders enter into a long-term maintenance
agreement.

3. This level of review should be completed by the Planning Commission, not the
Zoning Administrator.

4. A pine tree is an inappropriate species to use in this location. An oak tree would
be more appropriate as the site is located in a group of oak trees.

D. Zoning Administrator Discussion
A discussion took place between the Zoning Administrator, the Associate Planner, the
member of the public and the Applicant:

1. The Applicant noted that the proposed height of the tower is the minimum height
possible to provide essential to meet the service demands of the carrier.

2. The Acting Zoning Administrator noted that it was not legally possible to require
the Applicant to maintain the access road, owned by others, however any damage
caused by the construction or maintenance of the facility would be the
responsibility of the Applicant.

3. The Associate Planner and the Acting Zoning Administrator reviewed and
discussed the sections of the municipal code that applied to the application. The

) SAN RAFAEL

TIHE CITY WATTE & MISSION




Z A Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

Associate Planner noted that this level of review had also been discussed with the
former Director of Community Development Department and the City’s legal
counsel. Staff confirmed that Zoning Administrator was an appropriate body of
decision.

4. The Applicant and staff discussed the issue regarding use of a pine versus oak
tree and the Applicant agreed that either type of installation would be acceptable
to his client.

The Acting Zoning Administrator closed the public hearing.

E. Action
The Zoning Administrator Approved the request for an Environmental and Design Review
Permit (ED23-059) and Conditional Use Permit (UP23-026) subject to the conditions listed
below.

These conditions of approval are listed below and included as part of the Zoning
Administrators decision.

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:45 am.
FINDINGS

CEQA Findings

The project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code §21000, et seq. and California Code of Regulations,
§15000, et seq.) pursuant to Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (New Construction or
Conversion of Small Structures). Furthermore, none of the exceptions found in Government
Code §15300.2 apply.

Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) Findings (SRMC §14.25.090)

A. That the project design is in accord with the general plan, the objectives of the
zoning ordinance and the purposes of this chapter;

The property is in the Parks, Rec.,, and Open Space General Plan land use
designation. The new equipment will be located at a site with previously approved
telecommunication facilities. The design of the new facility has been reviewed
pursuant to SRMC § 14.16.120 as the pole will extend above the established building
height limit for the zoning district.

The proposed new facility will provide extended telecommunication services for the
surrounding area per Policy CSI-4.16 of the General Plan 2040.

B. That the project design is consistent with all applicable site, architecture and
landscaping design criteria and guidelines for the district in which the site is
located;

si[@.) SAN RAFAEL

TS CITY WITHE A MISSIOM



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

The project design will exceed the surrounding height requirement for the Parks/Open
Space Zoning District. Additional height is proposed to account for the faux “crown” of
the “monopine™- or “monoak” - type facility, which will lend to the facility mimicking a
tapered tree silhouette. With the conditions listed below (Condition No. 12) this is found
to be an acceptable aesthetic solution to the proposed overall height.

C. That the project design minimizes adverse environmental impacts; and

The project design minimizes environmental impacts in that the project has prepared
an Electromagnetic Energy (RF_EME) Compliance Report (RF Report) for the
proposed project which demonstrates that the proposed AT&T installation is in
compliance with Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulations “upon
proper installation of recommended signage and/or barriers” (see Condition No. 14
below).

D. That the project design will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or
welfare, nor materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity.

The design of the proposed project would not be detrimental to the public health, safety
or welfare, nor materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity in that
the project will require City of San Rafael Building Division and Fire Department.
Additionally, the site is located on privately-owned land with minimal access from the
public right-of-way. The facility will be surrounded by fencing and will not be open to
the public.

Use Permit (UP23-026) Findings (SRMC §14.22.080)

A. That the proposed use is in accord with the general plan, the objectives of the
zoning ordinance, and the purposed of the district in which the site is located;

The proposed use is in accord with the San Rafael General Plan 2020, the objectives
of the zoning ordinance, and the purposes of the district the site is located in, as
discussed in ED23-059 Finding A, listed above.

B. That the proposed use together with the conditions will not be detrimental to
the public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to property or
improvements in the vicinity, or the general welfare of the city;

The proposed use, together with the conditions applicable thereto, will not be
detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, or materially injurious to properties
or improvements in the vicinity, or to the general welfare of the city given that: 1) an
RF Report has been provided which concluded that the site would operate below the
maximum radio-frequency (RF) exposure limit set by the FCC; and 2) installation of
the proposed equipment will be subject to Building Department review and approval,
per ED23-059.

(tfs) SAN RAFAEL

TER CIY AT & MISSILN



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

C. That the proposed use complies with each of the applicable provisions of the
zoning ordinance.

The proposed project has been reviewed as a new ground-mounted
telecommunication facility in accordance with SRMC § 14.16.360. Projects of this type
require review by the Zoning Administrator, including facilities which exceed the
general height requirement for the zoning district.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Planning Division Standard Conditions of Approval

1. Approved Project. This Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and
Use Permit (UP23-026) conditionally approves the installation of a new
freestanding wireless facility for AT&T at 999 Old Lucas Valley Road. Plans
submitted for building permit shall be in substantial conformance to the approved
plans dated August 29, 2023, with regard to building techniques, materials,
elevations, and overall project appearance except as modified by these conditions
of approval. Minor modifications or revisions to the project shall be subject to
review and approval by the Community Development Department, Planning
Division. Modifications deemed greater than minor in nature by the Community
Development Director shall require review and approval by the Zoning
Administrator.

2. Subject to All Applicable Laws and Regulations. The approved use and/or
construction is subject to, and shall comply with, all applicable City Ordinances and
laws and regulations of other governmental agencies. Prior to construction, the
applicant shall identify and secure all applicable permits from the Building Division,
Public Works Department and other affected City divisions and departments.

3. Permit Validity. This Permit shall become effective on January 25, 2024 and shali
be valid for a period of two (2) years from the date of final approval or January 25,
2026, and shall become null and void if a building permit is not issued or a time
extension granted by January 25, 2026. A permit for the construction of a building
or structure is deemed exercised when a valid City building permit, if required, is
issued, and construction has lawfully commenced. A permit for the use of a
building or a property is exercised when, if required, a valid City business license
has been issued, and the permitted use has commenced on the property.

4, Building Permit. Prior to the commencement of work, a building permit shall be
obtained from the Building Division.

5. Construction Hours. Except as otherwise provided in subsection B of the San
Rafael Municipal Code Section 8.13.050, or by the planning commission or city

8l SAN RAFAEL i

TedE CITY WAIETTE A MISSHON



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

10.

114

council as part of the development review for the project, on any construction
project on property within the city, construction, alteration, demolition,
maintenance of construction equipment, deliveries of materials or equipment, or
repair activities otherwise allowed under applicable law shall be allowed between
the hours of seven a.m. (7:00 a.m.) and six p.m. (6:00 p.m.), Monday through
Friday, and nine a.m. (9:00 a.m.) and six p.m. (6:00 p.m.) on Saturdays, provided
that the noise level at any point outside of the property plane of the project shall
not exceed ninety (90) dBA. All such activities shall be precluded on Sundays and
holidays. Violation of the foregoing may subject the permittee to suspension of
work by the chief building official for up to two (2) days per violation.

Colors, Materials, and Lighting. Colors, materials and lighting shall be designed to
avoid creating undue off-site light and glare impacts. New or amended building or
site colors, materials and lighting shall comply with San Rafael Municipal Code
Section 14.16.227, subject to review and recommendation by the police
department, public works department, and community development department.

Exterior Lightning. Any exterior lighting shall be subject to a 90-day post installation
inspection to allow for adjustment and assure compliance with San Rafael
Municipal Code Section 14.16.227 - Light and glare. The project proponent is
responsible for hiring a qualified lighting expert to conduct the inspection and to
prepare a summary analysis verifying the projects meets City standards to be
submitted to the Planning Division.

Rooftop Equipment. Equipment placed on the rooftop of a building or in an exterior
yard area shall be adequately screened from public view. See_Chapter 14.16 for
exclusions to maximum height requirements and_Chapter 14.25 for design review
requirements.

Temporary Fences. Temporary security fences may be erected around
construction sites during the time a valid building permit is in effect for construction
on the premises. Temporary security fences need not comply with San Rafael
Municipal Section 14.16.140 and must be immediately removed upon completion
of the construction authorized by the building permit.

Landscape Maintenance. All landscaping shall be maintained in good condition
and any dead or dying plants, bushes, trees, or groundcover plantings shall be
replaced with new healthy stock of a size appropriate and compatible with the
remainder of the growth at the time of replacement.

Approved Materials and Colors. The approved materials and colors for the project
shall be indicated on project plans submitted for building permit and implemented
in the field. Any changes in materials or colors shall be subject to prior review and
approval by the City Planning Division, and a determination as to whether the
change is major or minor. Any changes to the approved materials or colors shall

\ SAN RAFAEL

DML CITY AT A MISSEON



Z A Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

be clearly indicated on plans and receive written verification that this change has
been reviewed and approved by the Planning Division.

ED23-059 Conditions of Approval

12.  Screening Method. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit
a revised faux tree-type design to better mimic a tree type native to the area (i.e.
oak). The Community Development Director shall review the faux pine and the
faux oak design and select the option most appropriate for the site. The applicant
shall revise the building permit to include that selection.

13.  Equipment Revision. No future revision of wireless equipment (e.g. antenna, coax
or appurtenance) shall be changed out for a like piece of equipment without
painting it to match.

14.  Signage. Proposed signage shall include the signage recommended in the Radio
Frequency — Electromagnetic Energy (RF_EME) Compliance Report (dated
August 19, 2022) to conform with FCC regulations.

15. All site improvements shall be maintained in good, undamaged conditions at all
times. The antenna shall be maintained, and any weathered portions shall be
repaired in a timely manner to ensure visual quality (refer to Condition No. 13).

UP23-026 Conditions of Approval

16.  The Use Permit (UP23-026) approving a new AT&T site build of an unmanned
telecommunications facility consisting of a lease area with associated ground-
mounted equipment shelter and generator and utilities to the site location: and a
‘monopine’/ “monoak”’ type facility with associated antennas and antenna
equipment. The size, colors, and materials shall be as shown on the plan set dated
August 29, 2023. This Use Permit (UP23-026) shall run concurrently with the
associated Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059). Should the
Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) expire, the Use Permit
(UP23-026) shall also expire and become invalid.

17.  Eacility Maintenance. The service provider shall properly maintain this facility
during the life of the permit. In the event the wireless antennas become obsolete
and abandoned, all wireless antennas and associated accessory structures shall
be removed from the subject property within thirty (30) days of abandonment. The
service provider shall notify the Planning and Building Divisions within ten (10)
days of abandonment. The removal of the entire facility shall take place within
twenty (20) days of the notification of the abandonment and shall be restored to
the design prior to the installation of the wireless antennas. Failure to remove the
equipment shall be subject to action by the City’s Code Enforcement Division.

.- SAN RAFAEL L




ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

18.

19.

20.

Notification of Abandonment of Use. The applicant, or its successor, shall remove
any abandoned facility or restore existing approved use of a facility within 90 days
of termination of use.

Validation of Proper Operation. AT&T (or its successors) shall submit the results
of the post-installation testing to the Community Development Department,
Planning Division. The testing shall be conducted once the antennas and
equipment are installed and operating at maximum capacity. The testing shall
entail verification of compliance with the FCC’s Radio Frequency (RF) emission
standards. This testing shall be conducted during normal business hours and on
non-holiday weekdays with the facility operating at maximum power. The
telecommunication provider, or its successor, shall provide the Community
Development Director with a report of the tests results.

Five Year Review. Every five (5) years, the wireless telecommunications provider,
or its successor(s), shall measure the RFR of the facility approved by this
Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and Use Permit (UP23-
026). The City may contract to perform the independent testing with a qualified
expert and the current wireless telecommunications provider, or its successor(s),
shall bear the proportionate cost of testing for the wireless telecommunications
facility approved by this Environmental and Design Review Permit and Use Permit.

a. Testing must be coordinated with and may be observed by the City or its
representative. The test measurement observations shall be recorded in a
written report prepared by AT&T or its contractor and shall specify the
location of the measurement, the peak measured signal strength in units of
mW/cm? and shall be correlated to the plan view of the project plans on Sheet
A-5. The report shall also provide full measurement equipment identification,
current calibration certificate(s) for all equipment, and the qualifications of the
person(s) conducting the test.

b. AT&T shall tender its written report documenting the testing and observations
to the City for review prior to unattended operations of its project. The City
shall within fourteen (14) business days notify AT&T by writing whether the
testing demonstrates compliance with FCC OET Bulletin 65 RF emissions
safety standards under the General Population/Uncontrolled standard, and
such notification shall not be unreasonably withheld. Upon the City’s
notification, AT&T may commence unattended operation of its project.

c. AT&T shall promptly reimburse the City for all of the City’s actual costs in
observing the testing and reviewing the report for compliance with the FCC
OET Bulletin 65 RF safety requirements, and if necessary for verifying any
subsequent remedial measures required to secure areas on the roof as
required in these conditions.

\ SAN RAFAEL

THlE CITY W THE A MIESSION



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

21.

22.

23.

24

25.

26.

Changes Affecting RF. Any operational or technological changes to an approved
wireless communication facility affecting RFR exposures shall be reported
promptly to the City, including any change of ownership. The City may require new
RFR testing within 45 days of notification.

Changes to FCC Standards. In the event the FCC changes their standards, the
owner or operator of an approved wireless facility shall make necessary changes
or upgrades to their facilities in order to comply with any newly adopted FCC
standards for RFR. The upgrades to facilities shall be made no later than 90 days
after notification of the changed FCC standards and the owner or operator shall
notify the city in writing that the upgrades have been completed.

If technology improvements allow for the use of materially smaller or less visually
obtrusive antennas and screening equipment, or equipment that generates less
RF emissions, the current wireless telecommunication provider, or its successors,
shall replace or upgrade the antennas and screening design. In the event of
replacement or upgrading, the owner or operator of an approved wireless facility
may be required to obtain a new Environmental and Design Review Permit and/or
Use Permit with associated fees.

After transmitter and antenna system optimization, but prior to unattended
operations of this project, AT&T or its representative must conduct on-site post-
installation RF emissions testing to demonstrate actual compliance with the FCC
OET Bulletin 65 RF emissions safety rules for General Population/Uncontrolled
RF exposure in all sectors. For this testing, the transmitter shall be operating at
maximum operating power, and the testing shall occur outwards to a distance
where the RF emissions no longer exceed the Uncontrolled/General Population
limit.

Full initial and ongoing compliance with all FCC RF safety rules in OET Bulletin
65 (as may be amended or superseded or replaced) is a continuing material
requirement and condition of this Permit.

Future Co-Location. Per SRMC Section 14.16.360.D.9 all new ground-mounted
towers or monopoles, require a signed statement that the carrier, or its future
successors, will cooperate with the city to allow future co-location of antennas at
the proposed site if it is approved and that the carrier has reviewed and agrees
to comply with all post-approval requirements of this section. This agreement is
required to be created an executed prior to the final inspection of the building
permit.

ACTION TAKEN: On January 17, 2024, the Zoning Administrator Conditionally

Approved the requested Environmental and Design Review Permit (ED23-059) and
Conditional Use Permit (UP23-026) subject to the Findings and Conditions above.

&

SAN RAFAEL

FHE COY AUTTEA BISSION



ZA Minutes and Notice of Decision
January 18, 2024

999 Old Lucas Valley Road
ED23-059/UP23-026 (PLAN23-134)

This Notice of Zoning Administrator decision is provided in compliance with SRMC Section
14.28.050 - Notice of decision. Any aggrieved party may appeal this decision pursuant to
SRMC Section 14.28.030 - Filing and time limit of appeals, by submitting a letter of appeal
and the appropriate fees within five (5) working days of the date of approval, or by January
24, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. This approval shall become effective at the end of the appeal period.

Once a permit approval has been implemented/established in compliance with all City

requirements, it shall run with the land and be valid for the time period specified; e.g., duration
of the project/use.

W/{W_W January 19,2024
= 3 74

Margaret Kavanaugh-Lynch, Acting Zoning Administrator Date

) SAN RAFAEL 10



SAN RAFAEL GENERAL PLANNING APPLICATION

THE CITY WITH A MISSION

APPLICATION FOR

[ Certificate of Compliance [0 Exception [] signReview
[ Pre-Application/Concept Design Review [0 General Plan Amendment Use Permit
[] Design Review [0 LotLine Adjustment [0 Vvariance
[ Development Agreement [[] Subdivision/Tent. Map [[] ZoneChange/Planned Dev
[0 Environmental Review [] sign Program/Amendment [] other
REVIEW/HEARING BODIES
[] Design Review Board [ Zoning Administrator Planning Commission
[] staff/Administration [ Ccity Council
APPLICATION FOR
STREETADDRESS: 999 Old Lucas Valley Road ASSESSOR'S PARCELNO(S): 165-010-03
EXISTING ZONING: Open Space/Parks GENERAL PLAN DESIGNATION:

PRESENT USE OF PROPERTY: Wireless Telecommunications Facility, Water Tank  SIZE OF PROPERTY: 1.049 acres
APPLICANT INFORMATION

PROPERTY OWNERNAME:  Marin Municipal Water District TELEPHONE/FAX:  415-945-1584
ADDRESS: 220 Nellen Avenue EMAIL: jeischens@marinwater.org

ciry/zie: - Corte Madera, CA 94925
AUTHORIZED AGENT/APPLICANT NAME: New Cingular Wireless, PCS,LLC c/o Complete Wireless Consulting TELEPHONE/FAX: 91 6-764-2632

ADDRESS: 2009 V St EMAIL:  kgallagher@completewireless.net
CiTy/zIP:  Sacramento, CA 95818
CONTACT (if differentfromabove): ~ Kevin Gallagher TELEPHONE/EMAIL:  Q16-764-2632

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

Wireless Telecommunications Facility. Please see project support statement for details.

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE: See Conditions of Applicationion Reverse

FILL OUT UPON RECEIPT ACTION BY:

APPLICATION DATE: STAFF: DATE:
RECEIVED BY: ZA: DATE:
FEES: $ PC: DATE:
STAFF PERSON: CC: DATE:
COMPLETENESS DATE: CDD: DATE:
CEQAASSMT:

DATE:

PLANNING Feb 2020 GENERAL APPLICATION FORM Project No(s).



1)
2)

3)

4)
5)

6)

7)

8)

CONDITIONS OF APPLICATION
All materials submitted in conjunction with this form shall be considered a part of this application.

This application will not be considered filed and processing may not be initiated until the Planning Division determines that the
submittal is complete with all necessary information and is "accepted as complete." The City will notify the applicant of all application
deficiencies no later than 30 days following application submittal.

The property owner authorizes the listed authorized agent(s)/contact(s) to appear before the City Council, Planning Commission,
Design Review Board and Zoning Administrator and to file applications, plans, and other information on the owner’s behalf.

The Owner shall inform the Planning Division in writing of any changes.

INDEMNIFICATION: As a condition of this application, applicant agrees to defend, indemnify, release and hold

harmless the City, its agents, officers, attorneys, employees, boards and commissions from any claim, action or proceeding brought
against any of the foregoing individuals or entities ("indemnities"), the purpose of which is to attack, set aside, void or annul the approval
of this application or the adoption of any environmental document which accompanies it. This indemnification shall include, but not be
limited to, damages, costs, expenses, attorney fees or expert witness fees that may be asserted or incurred by any person or entity,
including the applicant, third parties and the indemnities, arising out of or in connection with the approval of this application, whether
or not there is concurrent, passive or active negligence on the part of the indemnities.

In the event that any claim, action or proceeding as described above is brought, the City shall promptly notify the applicant of any
such claim, action or proceeding, and the City will cooperate fully in the defense of such claim, action, or proceeding. In the event the
applicant is required to defend the City in connection with any said claim, action or proceeding, the City shall retain the right to (1)
approve the counsel to so defend the City, (2) approve all significant decisions concerning the manner in which the defense is conducted,
and (3) approve any and all settlements, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Nothing herein shall prohibit the City from
participating in the defense of any claim, action or proceeding, provided that if the City chooses to have counsel of its own to defend
any claim, action or proceeding where applicant already has retained counsel to defend the City in such matters, the fees and the
expenses of the counsel selected by the City shall be paid by the City.

ATTORNEY'S EXPENSES COST REIMBURSEMENT: As a condition of this application, applicant agrees to be responsible for the
payment of all City Attorney expenses and costs, both for City staff attorneys and outside attorney consultants retained by the City,
associated with the reviewing, process and implementing of the land use approval and related conditions of such approval. City
Attorney expenses shall be based on the rates established from time to time by the City Finance Director to cover staff attorney salaries,
benefits, and overhead, plus the actual fees and expenses of any attorney consultants retained by the City. Applicant shall reimburse
City for City Attorney expenses and costs within 30 days following billing or same by the City.

RECOVERY OF ATTORNEY'S FEES BY PREVAILING PARTY: In any action brought to enforce the applicant's obligations, including
the Indemnification and Attorneys' Expenses Cost Reimbursement conditions set forth above, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
an award of reasonable litigation costs, including attorneys' fees and costs.

COST BASED FEE SYSTEM (not applicable to flat fee applications): Applicant agrees to pay to the City all incurred costs, both direct
and indirect, including State-mandated costs, associated with review and processing of the accompanying application for land use
approval(s), even if the application is withdrawn or not approved.

Reimbursable costs include all staff and overhead costs as established in the City’s adopted Cost Recovery Fee Program Master Fee
Schedule, as well as the cost of required professional consultants to assist in environmental, engineering or legal review.

If expenditures exceed 75% of the deposit amount required by the Cost Recovery Fee Program, additional deposits will be
requested. Applicant understands and agrees that nonpayment of deposit requests within the time period specified in the request shall
be deemed a withdrawal of the application. Any unexpended funds will be refunded by the City after completion of application
processing.

| have read and agree with all of the above. | declare under penalty of perjury that the information contained in this application is true and

correct to the best of my knowledge. %
[/ «
Property Owner: Q/ 4 / —/i Dated: Q" Z/ : Z’S

Authorized Agent/Applicant: Dated:

9/26/23

PLANNING Feb 2020 GENERAL APPLICATION FORM Project No(s).


Kevin Gallagher
Typewritten Text
9/26/23


AT&T MOBILITY
PROJECT SUPPORT STATEMENT
Site Name: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Rd
Site Address: 999 Old Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, CA
APN: 165-010-03

INTRODUCTION & FACILITY DESCRIPTION

The demand for wireless and data services continues to grow across California. Access to the
wireless network has become vital as individuals increasingly rely on handheld and mobile devices as their
primary method of communication. AT&T Mobility constantly seeks to improve its wireless network
through industry-leading techniques and innovative solutions to respond to high levels of wireless
network traffic and increased user demand. This proposal for a new wireless telecommunications facility
is an essential part of the effort to continuously improve the AT&T network for future and potential
customers. The facility proposal is designed to comply with all wireless communications guidelines set
forth by the City of San Rafael.

This is a proposal for a new, freestanding wireless telecommunications facility on the above
referenced parcel within the City of Rafael in order to fill a significant coverage along Lucas Valley Road
and Las Gallinas Avenue. The property is currently the site of a Marin Municipal Water District water tank
and an existing, non-colocatable wireless telecommunications facility. The proposed facility is the least
intrusive means for AT&T to close a significant gap in network coverage.

LR Aot
& Mz




AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

Location

The project is located on an approximately 1-acre parcel zoned Open Space/Parks. The subject parcel is
surrounded by a larger, County-owned parcel with the same zoning designation. The parcel is accessed
via an existing road, partly paved and partly gravel. As stated above, the property contains an existing
Marin Municipal Water District water tank and associated buildings, as well as an existing non-
colocatable wireless telecommunications facility. AT&T’s proposed facility would be placed on an
existing, unused area near the water tank and the existing wireless facility, and is situated so as not to
interfere with existing operations on the property.

Project Location

‘Project Location

Design and Aesthetic Impacts

The proposed facility is located within an open, hilly, and roughly triangular area containing a number of
public trails and surrounded by residential neighborhoods. To minimize the aesthetic impacts, a heavily
wooded hillside that already contains existing utility and wireless telecommunications equipment has
been chosen.

AT&T is proposing a new, freestanding, 56’ tall “monopine” style stealth wireless facility to blend with
existing trees. A total of 12 panel antennas are proposed, mounted such that the top of the antennas



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

will be at 49" above ground level. (The additional height is for the faux “crown” of the monopine, which
is necessary to present the tapered silhouette of a natural tree. The monopine would be placed within a
25’ by 25’ compound surrounded by a 6’ tall chain link fence topped with barbed wire. Ground
equipment would include an 8’ by 8" walk-in equipment cabinet and a 30 kW diesel emergency backup
generator and 190 gallon fuel tank. The facility would be accessed using the existing access road and
utilities will be run underground. A full description of the proposed facility can be found in the site plans
enclosed with this application.

The facility will be engineered to support the colocation of an additional carrier.
A full set of photo simulations has been enclosed with the application materials.

View from Lucas Valley Road, looking Southwest

| Prposedarar |
| Installation |



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AREA

The objective of the proposed facility is to improve coverage and capacity along an area centered
on Lucas Valley Road and Las Galinas Avenue. (see coverage maps on following pages) To achieve this
service objective, AT&T identified a potential candidate "Search Ring.” A Search Ring is an area on a map
that is determined by AT&T’s Radio Frequency Engineer (RF engineer). The area identifies the geographic
area within which the proposed telecommunications site must be located to satisfy the intended service
objective. In creating the Search Ring, the RF engineer considers many factors, such as topography,
proximity to existing structures, current coverage areas, existing obstructions, etc.

Despite the size of the search area, because of the hilly topography and existing pattern of
development, options were extremely limited. Existing and proposed coverage maps are shown on the
following page — higher resolution maps have also been included with the application materials.

Approximate Search Area

. Rab7uoy o

I awgen :
“«w—um 1.
B
wlpends)

s
‘\"“ . e IR ":'i'+
ot e I YTR e
,14 P, LIS A8 4 LR L

LA P LB "?
"\I."‘.“.\u{f'\!"-

¥ A vy

A
WicasValley/Rd




AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

Legend

Existing LTE 700 Coverage

Reliable Service iIndoors/Outdoors
Relisble Coverage in Tranalt

Indoor Coverage Less Rellable
Reliable Coverage Outdoors Only
Indoor Coverage Less Reliable
% . Existing site
b,,, Fore . Proposed site
xo M3,
I 3 23
o ¥ o
“yibersy o
(g
o, nt
lu ,)6/ %, W Q"o *
Uy, oy %, 2 &
l{’fl Dixie 74 e Cudatberty Ln F
o, =
’% Elementary LUCAS - VALLEY ety in S & *.'
Sthog) 5 Moarin 28 b o
or Marin Count > Waldor! =
Moy, ~ Cregy il § Schoot  O' oy % ]
ﬂr&,ul 2 u‘\ﬁ \ iR 4
ey § a e ‘O" Cartyon Cak DY
reek. 0" ag
Lucas Valley Rd — Qc‘o 2 o) &
Sl ) & o,
$ g
;oo
¢ 3 o
° % S5
% ¢
3 ;
< v

$
: »
- -
JMONT MARIN %
FAEL PARK o4 Hy

6, 2022 i
] 0

Legend

Reliable Service Indoors/Outdoors

Rellable Coverage in Transit
Indoor Covarage Less Rellsble

Rellable Coverage Outdoors Only
Indoor Coverage Less Ruliable

@ Eustingsite
. Proposed site

Scale: 1:10,260



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

ALTERNATIVE SITES ANALYSIS

In identifying the most preferred site location and design, AT&T begins its process by identifying a search
area and a required centerline height. AT&T then looks to local codes and general plans to identify the
values significant to the local community for the siting/locating of wireless facilities. In addition to the
abovementioned location and height attributes, each proposed site must meet certain minimum
requirements, such as the following:

A willing landlord,

Feasible construction,

Road access,

Available telephone and electrical utilities,
Satisfaction of coverage objectives, and
Compliance with local zoning requirements.

Methodology and Zoning Criteria

Wireless communication is a line-of-sight technology that requires facilities to be of sufficient height in
order to effectively “see” the existing facilities which comprise the network. Each proposed site is unique
and must be investigated and analyzed on its own terms.

San Rafael’s municipal code requires all wireless facilities be set back from residential uses or zones 200’
or three times the facility’s height, whichever is greater. (Marin County similarly discourages wireless
facilities in residential areas, as well as along scenic ridgelines.) Colocations are required where feasible,
and commercial and industrial zones are preferred. There are no Commercial or Industrial zones in the
area:

LY ¥ % o g T AR OPUN T\ ey TR 3 el DUt
> &i' oy o Marin s biaprty TS o,y oS canties T8y (I
%"’ﬁDr SLluca r P“\.)")) s W: FOd, (K wrss
b [ casl W 3 = o ; A
A3 cas Valley Rd —— UL SORRE Zontiy Ef:.H:FL)r
% —06— e Z B’“‘f SO OB
O CONY B S
i {0,
?\@.

Valloy Rd 5.«
L ATh
#Va's‘sy.'i.ﬁ? =
BiG.




AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

There are also are no viable colocations. The only potential colocation in the area is the previously
mentioned Sprint-owned facility on this same property. The facility is a pole holding three antennas that
is too short to accommodate the centerline needed to fill AT&T’s existing coverage gap and can support
neither weight of an extension nor AT&T’s equipment loading.

Approximation Boundaries of Area not within Residential Setbacks

When residential setbacks are considered, this leaves only the broad hillside area depicted above as a
viable location for a wireless facility, with options further narrowed when topography is considered. Of
this area, most of it contains nature trails and consists of either bare hillsides that extremely visible to
nearby residential neighborhoods or heavily wooded hillsides with no access.

The proposed location is unique in that it is well situated in terms of topography to meet fill the coverage
gap, has existing access, and is fairly well hidden by terrain and existing trees. The stealthed, “monopine”
design will allow the facility, to the extent it is visible, to blend with the natural surroundings.

Alternative Analysis Conclusion

Because there no viable colocations and no commercial or industrial parcels in the area, and because the
facility has been designed and sited to minimize visual impacts, the proposed location is the least intrusive
means of filling the existing significant coverage gap.



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Safety Benefits of Improved Wireless Service

AT&T offers its customers multiple services such as voice calls, text messaging, mobile email, picture/video
messaging, mobile web, navigation, broadband access, V CAST, and E911 services. Mobile phone use has
become an extremely important tool for first responders and serves as a back-up system in the event of
a natural disaster. AT&T will install a standby generator at this facility to ensure quality communication
for the surrounding community in the event of a natural disaster or catastrophic event. This generator
will be fully contained within the equipment shelter and will provide power to the facility if local power
systems are offline.

Maintenance

AT&T installs standby generators and backup batteries at all its cell sites. The batteries play a vital role in
AT&T’s emergency and disaster preparedness plan. Inthe event of a power outage, the back-up generator
will automatically start and continue to run the site for up to 24 hours. The standby generator will operate
for approximately 15 minutes per week for maintenance purposes and will only be tested during the
daytime. Back-up generators allow AT&T’s sites to continue providing valuable communications services
in the event of a power outage, natural disaster or other emergency. Following construction, a small sign
indicating the facility owner and a 24-hour emergency telephone number will be provided on site.

Parking & Traffic
The facility is unmanned and will operate 24 hours a day, seven days a week. A technician will occasionally

visit the facility to service the equipment, approximately once a month. There will no other visitors or
guests associated with the facility.

Construction Schedule

The construction of the facility will follow all local rules and regulations. The crew size will range from
two to ten individuals. The construction phase of the project will last approximately two months and will
not exceed acceptable noise levels.

Compliance with FCC Standards

This project will not interfere with any TV, radio, telephone, satellite, or other signals. Any interference
would be against federal law and a violation of AT&T’s FCC license. An RF report verifying compliance
with FCC guidelines is included with this submittal.

Environmental Assessment
The project is categorically exempt under CEQA as a Class Il small structure. A study verifying compliance
with FCC EME regulations has been included as part of this application.

Airports
There are no airports or airstrips within five miles of the proposed facility.

Water Usage
As the facility is unmanned and no landscaping is proposed, there will be no impact on water usage on

the property.



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

Notice of Actions Affecting Development Permit

In accordance with California Government Code Section 65945(a), AT&T requests notice of any proposal
to adopt or amend the: general plan, specific plan, zoning ordinance, ordinance(s) affecting building or
grading permits that would in any manner affect this development permit. Any such notice may be sent
to 2009 V Street, Sacramento, CA 95818.

10



COMPLETE

Wireless Consulting, Inc.

September 26, 2023
Via Online Submittal Portal

City of San Rafael

Community Development — Planning Division
1400 Fifth Avenue, Top Floor

San Rafael, CA 94901

Re: AT&T Use Permit Application, 999 Old Lucas Valley Rd, San Rafael 94903 (APN
165-010-03); Site Name: CCL00656

This package is intended as a formal application for a use permit for the above referenced New
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (d/b/a AT&T Mobility) telecommunications facility. Please find enclosed
the following materials:

1. General Planning Application 5. Radio Frequency (RF) Study
2. Project Support Statement 6. Noise Study
3. Photo Simulations — 4 Views 7. Site Plans & Elevations
4. Coverage Maps
As a freestanding wireless facility, AT&T believes the 150-day FCC shot clock applies.
| can be reached at 916-764-2632 or by email to process payment via credit card.
Sincerely,
rd ‘/
Ve 2/

Kevin Gallagher
KGallagher@completewireless.net

Enclosures

2009 V Street
Sacramento, CA 95818


mailto:MKim@completewireless.net

AT&T MOBILITY
PROJECT SUPPORT STATEMENT
Site Name: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Rd
Site Address: 999 Old Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, CA
APN: 165-010-03

INTRODUCTION & FACILITY DESCRIPTION

The demand for wireless and data services continues to grow across California. Access to the
wireless network has become vital as individuals increasingly rely on handheld and mobile devices as their
primary method of communication. AT&T Mobility constantly seeks to improve its wireless network
through industry-leading techniques and innovative solutions to respond to high levels of wireless
network traffic and increased user demand. This proposal for a new wireless telecommunications facility
is an essential part of the effort to continuously improve the AT&T network for future and potential
customers. The facility proposal is designed to comply with all wireless communications guidelines set
forth by the City of San Rafael.

This is a proposal for a new, freestanding wireless telecommunications facility on the above
referenced parcel within the City of Rafael in order to fill a significant coverage along Lucas Valley Road
and Las Gallinas Avenue. The property is currently the site of a Marin Municipal Water District water tank
and an existing, non-colocatable wireless telecommunications facility. The proposed facility is the least
intrusive means for AT&T to close a significant gap in network coverage.

R S el AN O )




AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

Location

The project is located on an approximately 1-acre parcel zoned Open Space/Parks. The subject parcel is
surrounded by a larger, County-owned parcel with the same zoning designation. The parcel is accessed
via an existing road, partly paved and partly gravel. As stated above, the property contains an existing
Marin Municipal Water District water tank and associated buildings, as well as an existing non-
colocatable wireless telecommunications facility. AT&T’s proposed facility would be placed on an
existing, unused area near the water tank and the existing wireless facility, and is situated so as not to
interfere with existing operations on the property.

Project Location

‘Pr_oject Location

|

5 Ta%e

{(@o

Design and Aesthetic Impacts

The proposed facility is located within an open, hilly, and roughly triangular area containing a number of
public trails and surrounded by residential neighborhoods. To minimize the aesthetic impacts, a heavily
wooded hillside that already contains existing utility and wireless telecommunications equipment has
been chosen.

AT&T is proposing a new, freestanding, 56’ tall “monopine” style stealth wireless facility to blend with
existing trees. A total of 12 panel antennas are proposed, mounted such that the top of the antennas



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

will be at 49’ above ground level. (The additional height is for the faux “crown” of the monopine, which
is necessary to present the tapered silhouette of a natural tree. The monopine would be placed within a
25’ by 25’ compound surrounded by a 6’ tall chain link fence topped with barbed wire. Ground
equipment would include an 8’ by 8’ walk-in equipment cabinet and a 30 kW diesel emergency backup
generator and 190 gallon fuel tank. The facility would be accessed using the existing access road and
utilities will be run underground. A full description of the proposed facility can be found in the site plans
enclosed with this application.

The facility will be engineered to support the colocation of an additional carrier.
A full set of photo simulations has been enclosed with the application materials.

View from Lucas Valley Road, looking Southwest

Proposed AT&AT
Installation




AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE AREA

The objective of the proposed facility is to improve coverage and capacity along an area centered
on Lucas Valley Road and Las Galinas Avenue. (see coverage maps on following pages) To achieve this
service objective, AT&T identified a potential candidate "Search Ring.” A Search Ring is an area on a map
that is determined by AT&T’s Radio Frequency Engineer (RF engineer). The area identifies the geographic
area within which the proposed telecommunications site must be located to satisfy the intended service
objective. In creating the Search Ring, the RF engineer considers many factors, such as topography,
proximity to existing structures, current coverage areas, existing obstructions, etc.

Despite the size of the search area, because of the hilly topography and existing pattern of
development, options were extremely limited. Existing and proposed coverage maps are shown on the

following page — higher resolution maps have also been included with the application materials.

Approximate Search Area

felylberiyiRescn . 2

L ]
€'}
SO
aa .

fiadet
pua¥

&

L Sl )

» 1
rleth fa gpian

-
tuséas Valley'Rd

ag'e ot N




AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

Existing LTE 700 Coverage

Legend

. Reliable Service Indoors/Outdoors
Reliable Coverage in Transit

Indoor Coverage Less Reliable
Reliable Coverage Outdoors Only
Indoor Coverage Less Reliable
% . Existing site
2 For, . Proposed site
5 S
e = b3
/g, 7l
Yiberr,
2.
g
Houp, nt¢
‘) P ‘10“‘ 4, ..,
[0(.*:/6(‘(_ % 3 rd
y R %, o oy odarberry L
0/4)’ Dixie "% C
%y “Elementary LUCAS-VALLEY i & E *J
School 5 Marin  qu®® 5 "
A M'/b,c, Marin County > Waldorf §
Xy, 0% § School «°‘\ rd - &
p YU e, g p.?@‘ y\l Cariyon Oak D
Miller Creek — 0%,
Lucas Valley Rd 22 $— /8
S g & <
S g » o9,
g a\e"* &
X N
& BN =
& g
.S ¥, < IR
% »*
CCLO0656 % &
% o g
B > %,
P = I L
S ‘ 3 5
%‘P

[ Scale: 1:10,260

. Reliable Service Indoors/Outdoors

Reliable Coverage in Transit
Indoor Coverage Less Reliable

Reliable Coverage Outdoors Only
Indoor Coverage Less Reliable

@ Existing site
. Proposed site

MONT M .

SAN RAFN



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

ALTERNATIVE SITES ANALYSIS

In identifying the most preferred site location and design, AT&T begins its process by identifying a search
area and a required centerline height. AT&T then looks to local codes and general plans to identify the
values significant to the local community for the siting/locating of wireless facilities. In addition to the
abovementioned location and height attributes, each proposed site must meet certain minimum
requirements, such as the following:

A willing landlord,

Feasible construction,

Road access,

Available telephone and electrical utilities,
Satisfaction of coverage objectives, and
Compliance with local zoning requirements.

Methodology and Zoning Criteria

Wireless communication is a line-of-sight technology that requires facilities to be of sufficient height in
order to effectively “see” the existing facilities which comprise the network. Each proposed site is unique
and must be investigated and analyzed on its own terms.

San Rafael’s municipal code requires all wireless facilities be set back from residential uses or zones 200’
or three times the facility’s height, whichever is greater. (Marin County similarly discourages wireless
facilities in residential areas, as well as along scenic ridgelines.) Colocations are required where feasible,
and commercial and industrial zones are preferred. There are no Commercial or Industrial zones in the
area:

:f,f w,»“ aTe Ty
< J‘]?‘e mgm’mﬁ{.i‘f“” Kppieorty L8 3o y-“ﬁ R
_ib']

HiDrﬂE'Ef?a‘gu:m

-Lycas Valiey Rd




AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

There are also are no viable colocations. The only potential colocation in the area is the previously
mentioned Sprint-owned facility on this same property. The facility is a pole holding three antennas that
is too short to accommodate the centerline needed to fill AT&T’s existing coverage gap and can support
neither weight of an extension nor AT&T’s equipment loading.

Approximation Boundaries of Area not within Residential Setbacks

TR iunaga

[ficas alisyiRe

When residential setbacks are considered, this leaves only the broad hillside area depicted above as a
viable location for a wireless facility, with options further narrowed when topography is considered. Of
this area, most of it contains nature trails and consists of either bare hillsides that extremely visible to
nearby residential neighborhoods or heavily wooded hillsides with no access.

The proposed location is unique in that it is well situated in terms of topography to meet fill the coverage
gap, has existing access, and is fairly well hidden by terrain and existing trees. The stealthed, “monopine”
design will allow the facility, to the extent it is visible, to blend with the natural surroundings.

Alternative Analysis Conclusion

Because there no viable colocations and no commercial or industrial parcels in the area, and because the
facility has been designed and sited to minimize visual impacts, the proposed location is the least intrusive
means of filling the existing significant coverage gap.



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Safety Benefits of Improved Wireless Service

AT&T offers its customers multiple services such as voice calls, text messaging, mobile email, picture/video
messaging, mobile web, navigation, broadband access, V CAST, and E911 services. Mobile phone use has
become an extremely important tool for first responders and serves as a back-up system in the event of
a natural disaster. AT&T will install a standby generator at this facility to ensure quality communication
for the surrounding community in the event of a natural disaster or catastrophic event. This generator
will be fully contained within the equipment shelter and will provide power to the facility if local power
systems are offline.

Maintenance

AT&T installs standby generators and backup batteries at all its cell sites. The batteries play a vital role in
AT&T’s emergency and disaster preparedness plan. In the event of a power outage, the back-up generator
will automatically start and continue to run the site for up to 24 hours. The standby generator will operate
for approximately 15 minutes per week for maintenance purposes and will only be tested during the
daytime. Back-up generators allow AT&T’s sites to continue providing valuable communications services
in the event of a power outage, natural disaster or other emergency. Following construction, a small sign
indicating the facility owner and a 24-hour emergency telephone number will be provided on site.

Parking & Traffic

The facility is unmanned and will operate 24 hours a day, seven days a week. A technician will occasionally
visit the facility to service the equipment, approximately once a month. There will no other visitors or
guests associated with the facility.

Construction Schedule

The construction of the facility will follow all local rules and regulations. The crew size will range from
two to ten individuals. The construction phase of the project will last approximately two months and will
not exceed acceptable noise levels.

Compliance with FCC Standards

This project will not interfere with any TV, radio, telephone, satellite, or other signals. Any interference
would be against federal law and a violation of AT&T’s FCC license. An RF report verifying compliance
with FCC guidelines is included with this submittal.

Environmental Assessment
The project is categorically exempt under CEQA as a Class Il small structure. A study verifying compliance
with FCC EME regulations has been included as part of this application.

Airports
There are no airports or airstrips within five miles of the proposed facility.

Water Usage
As the facility is unmanned and no landscaping is proposed, there will be no impact on water usage on

the property.



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03



AT&T Mobility Site: CCLO0656 — Lucas Valley Road
APN 165-010-03

Notice of Actions Affecting Development Permit

In accordance with California Government Code Section 65945(a), AT&T requests notice of any proposal
to adopt or amend the: general plan, specific plan, zoning ordinance, ordinance(s) affecting building or
grading permits that would in any manner affect this development permit. Any such notice may be sent
to 2009 V Street, Sacramento, CA 95818.

10



1gluassen v\

g
d 4
s
/I\A"'é’rir;lr Colnty|@
& Utvenile|rallh

J

~
IS,

2
(

e

Idylberry Rd|

- |

m“‘\

ﬁguc;‘galley Parlg’ .\

™

b IF
Rolgan'y’gyalley;/.\ssoc es

by o Jeannétle Rrandi
" ‘Children'siCenter;

Marin
CountyRarks, ™

Eield[OfficeRim. =

g =3 2P
et ¥ v " BiiARy

oS

3 i

vﬁ 5‘\ (‘g .t" "'I‘f m,.r

= 3 |'
3 '!l‘ it
) Cahforma Fencec * bal

‘\ ‘B’"ﬂ e

B LUCas Valley R

d!
N a\\e* ®

; 3 Y .
Ol A

& )
) éha | Jerry Russom

- oriallPark
| Project Location
’; k,s PR
% 8
! s &
W S

g
%

%
©

Wate,. TanwFive RA= |

e reRd

anceSi

. ;
mulation Solutions

Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507

i

<
: Mam,WaldcrfScho It

CCL00656 Lucas Valley Rd & Huckleberry Rd
ATeT Wireless 999 Oid Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, CA
Photosims Produced on 6-24-2022

® Marinwood
iennis, Courts

ol oo Mal’ll‘lWOOd‘
Community Ceme-r..

\_Q\
S
S
7o

Q) '\" . Barbershop

Hugs&Klssg§/Daycare ) " N 4

0“ ?
- \.

\ & ‘
i~ Q@f e
gy MillerjCreele® 5
AWatershed! Stewards

{ Qo y 4 &
\ml‘ll},‘lSTlTU;r‘E L/»

Shot Point Map




Existing

220

Proposed AT&T
Installation

view from Upper Oak Drive looking southwest at site

A d ATeT Wireless CCL00656 Lucas Valley Rd & Huckleberry Rd
Vance 999 Old Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, CA

Photo Simulation Solutions )
Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507 Photosims Produced on 6-24-2022

(i




.
Existing

Proposed AT&T
Instaliation

s

view from Tan Oak Circle looking northwest at site

ATeT Wireless CCL00656 Lucas Valley Rd & Huckleberry Rd
999 Old Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, CA
Photosims Produced on 6-24-2022




Existing

Proposed

view from Lucans Valley Road looking southeast at site

ATeT Wireless CCL00656 Lucas Valley Rd & Huckleberry Rd
999 Old Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, CA
Photosims Produced on 6-24-2022

((jp

AdvanceSin=5>

Photo Simulation Soluti
Contact ( 925 ) 202-8507




Exis
m. -

et

ting

Proposed AT&T
Installation

Advance

Photo Simulation Solutions
Contact (925 ) 202-8507

view from Idylberry Road looking south at site

ATeT Wireless CCL00656 Lucas Valley Rd & Huckleberry Rd
999 Old Lucas Valley Road, San Rafael, CA
Photosims Produced on 6-24-2022




CCL00656 Service Maps

June 16, 2022




Existing LTE 700 Coverage . Legend

. Reliable Service Indoors/Outdoors

Reliable Coverage in Transit
Indoor Coverage Less Reliable

Reliable Coverage Outdoors Only
Indoor Coverage Less Reliable

% . Existing site
o .
% Proposed site
Forox_ ot 5, . :
2 9 e
e F 3
/d. N
}”berry
P
Lo g
M
ou,,,)‘0 P ‘hount(e‘_'
‘Uc,,::ikq g’ég. g «49‘6
2 ©
Y, Dixie "% I cedarberry ln&k
%Ry "\ Elementary ~LUCAS-VALLEY & o Lt
X yoe(y L .
Kok 5 Marin Q\ec S .
e Marin Count > Waldorf =
M%n,MCrGo& Y § School 0% o4 > — s
e g Q\‘vd«,‘p Canyon Oak Dr
w POt P
Rd Miller Creek -\ 0%, : L
Lucas Valley 2 K £
a3 o 5o,
eveo™ g
“ N
g /.
.S 5 %9. &
CCL00656 qQ
® ¢
Ng
%,
%%

FAEL PARK | o0k,

|

Scale: 1:10,260 . 202-2




miles
Scale: 1:10,260

at 999 Old Lucas Valley Rd

QOLK .

Madin COUr 'y

i 3
=0 "’1- (4 Valley Rd -

Legend

. Reliable Service Indoors/Outdoors

Reliable Coverage in Transit
Indoor Coverage Less Reliable

Reliable Coverage Outdoors Only
Indoor Coverage Less Reliable

. Existing site

. Proposed site




Existing Surrounding Sites Legend
. Existing site

. Proposed site

ILucas Valley Preserve

MARINWOOD
Lue
%,
%
YRy
- < : “d ) =
N éo'e Marinwood
\! /"m,%' §
-
L = A\
o Vay, ‘ ve“’ Rd ,f’ int Vincent
A LUCAS-VALLEY
Marin County
A
San T MARIN Gallinas
Domenico SAN Q}MEL PARK 1
Elementary \
':'nc:‘ ‘“COIin \ S
9 das p \
School A \
f AN
N : 0_%\\
M‘ / —
Qoe/’ (4 \
N5, ‘\\
Levey \ E
Z \
Sleepy g %, Vallecito; A "
Hollow  Brockside ' Elementary.
Ipper § 7PRax_ school
Elementary & i
School ] ®
~ .
0 0.5 =) TERRA LINDA
e —
miles ESMe, 00 OF Northgate Moun

Scale: 1:22,430 Mall -+ Olivet




Radio Frequency — Electromagnetic Energy
(RF-EME) Compliance Report

Site Number: CCL00656
RFDS ID: 4508079
Pace Number: MRSFR088452, MRSFR088463, MRSFR07387 |, MRSFR088464,
MRSFR088453, MRSFR088458
Lucas Valley Rd & Huckleberry Rd
999 Old Lucas Road
San Rafael, California 94903
Marin County
38.02361000; -122.561 10700 NADS83
Monotree

The proposed AT&T installation will be in compliance with FCC regulations
upon proper installation of recommended signage.

EBI Project No. 6222005058
August 19, 2022

Prepared for:

AT&T Mobility, LLC
c/o Complete Wireless
2009 V Street
Sacramento, CA 95818

Prepared by:

EBI Consulting

4 environmental | engineering | due diligence



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 OId Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...cccoiniiinrmnssessssssssssssssossssssasssssssssssssssssassssassssssssssssssssssossssssasssssssssssssssssasssssssss I
1.0 FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION (FCC) REQUIREMENTS ....ccccuresursssnsesassssnsosasoss 3
2.0 AT&T RF EXPOSURE POLICY REQUIREMENTS ..ccccutteunrssassssnssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssassssssssnsssasss 5
3.0 WORST-CASE PREDICTIVE MODELING......ccccceerseeerrressasssanssassssassssssssasossasssasssassssasssassssasssanes 5
4.0 RECOMMENDED SIGNAGE/COMPLIANCE PLAN ......ccccreiereiesnnesnsssnnesasesssssnsesssssassssssssnsosass 7
5.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS....ccccreeerrressasssasessasssssssassssasssassssassssasssasessasssasssassssasssassssasssases 8
6.0 LIMITATIONS ...cuuuuennrnttiieisisssnnnsttticcsssssnssstenesessssssnsssssssessssssssssssssessssssssssssssssessssssssssnssassssses 8
APPENDICES

Appendix A Personnel Certifications
Appendix B Compliance/Signage Plan

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 i



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 OId Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Purpose of Report

EnviroBusiness Inc. (dba EBI Consulting) has been contracted by AT&T Mobility, LLC to conduct radio
frequency electromagnetic (RF-EME) modeling for AT&T Site CCL00656 located at 999 Old Lucas Road
in San Rafael, California to determine RF-EME exposure levels from proposed AT&T wireless
communications equipment at this site. As described in greater detail in Section 1.0 of this report, the
Federal Communications Commission (FCC) has developed Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE) Limits
for general public exposures and occupational exposures. This report summarizes the results of RF-EME
modeling in relation to relevant FCC RF-EME compliance standards for limiting human exposure to RF-
EME fields.

This report contains the RF EME analysis for the site, including the following:

= Site Plan with antenna locations
»  Graphical representation of theoretical MPE fields based on modeling
»  Graphical representation of recommended signage and/or barriers

This document addresses the compliance of AT&T’s transmitting facilities independently and in relation
to all collocated facilities at the site.

Statement of Compliance

A site is considered out of compliance with FCC regulations if there are areas that exceed the FCC
exposure limits and there are no RF hazard mitigation measures in place. Any carrier which has an
installation that contributes more than 5% of the applicable MPE must participate in mitigating these RF
hazards.

As presented in the sections below, based on worst-case predictive modeling, there are no modeled
exposures on any accessible rooftop or ground walking/working surface related to ATT’s proposed
antennas that exceed the FCC’s occupational and/or general public exposure limits at this site.

As such, the proposed AT&T installation is in compliance with FCC regulations upon proper installation
of recommended signage and/or barriers.

AT&T Recommended Signage/Compliance Plan

AT&T’s RF Exposure: Responsibilities, Procedures & Guidelines document, dated October 28, 2014,
requires that:

I.  All sites must be analyzed for RF exposure compliance;
2. All sites must have that analysis documented; and
3. All sites must have any necessary signage and barriers installed.

Site compliance recommendations have been developed based upon protocols presented in AT&T’s RF
Exposure: Responsibilities, Procedures & Guidelines document, dated October 28, 2014, additional
guidance provided by AT&T, EBI’s understanding of FCC and OSHA requirements, and common industry
practice. Barrier locations have been identified (when required) based on guidance presented in AT&T’s
RF Exposure: Responsibilities, Procedures & Guidelines document, dated October 28, 2014.

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 |



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 OId Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

The following signage is recommended at this site:

*  Yellow CAUTION 2B sign posted at the base of the monotree near the climbing ladder-.

The signage proposed for installation at this site complies with AT&T’s RF Exposure: Responsibilities,
Procedures & Guidelines document and therefore complies with FCC and OSHA requirements. Barriers
are not recommended on this site. To reduce the risk of exposure and/or injury, EBI recommends that
access to the monotree or areas associated with the active antenna installation be restricted and secured
where possible. More detailed information concerning site compliance recommendations is presented in
Section 4.0 and Appendix B of this report.

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 2



USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
999 Old Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

RF-EME Compliance Report
EBI Project No. 6222005058

1.0 FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION (FCC) REQUIREMENTS

The FCC has established Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE) limits for human exposure to
Radiofrequency Electromagnetic (RF-EME) energy fields, based on exposure limits recommended by the
National Council on Radiation Protection and Measurements (NCRP) and, over a wide range of
frequencies, the exposure limits developed by the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, Inc.
(IEEE) and adopted by the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) to replace the 1982 ANSI
guidelines. Limits for localized absorption are based on recommendations of both ANSI/IEEE and NCRP.

The FCC guidelines incorporate two separate tiers of exposure limits that are based upon
occupational/controlled exposure limits (for workers) and general public/uncontrolled exposure limits for
members of the general public.

Occupational/controlled exposure limits apply to situations in which persons are exposed as a
consequence of their employment and in which those persons who are exposed have been made fully
aware of the potential for exposure and can exercise control over their exposure. Occupational/
controlled exposure limits also apply where exposure is of a transient nature as a result of incidental
passage through a location where exposure levels may be above general public/luncontrolled limits (see
below), as long as the exposed person has been made fully aware of the potential for exposure and can
exercise control over his or her exposure by leaving the area or by some other appropriate means.

General publicluncontrolled exposure limits apply to situations in which the general public may be
exposed or in which persons who are exposed as a consequence of their employment may not be made
fully aware of the potential for exposure or cannot exercise control over their exposure. Therefore,
members of the general public would always be considered under this category when exposure is not
employment-related, for example, in the case of a telecommunications tower that exposes persons in a
nearby residential area.

Table | and Figure | (below), which are included within the FCC’s OET Bulletin 65, summarize the MPE
limits for RF emissions. These limits are designed to provide a substantial margin of safety. They vary by
frequency to take into account the different types of equipment that may be in operation at a particular
facility and are “time-averaged” limits to reflect different durations resulting from controlled and
uncontrolled exposures.

The FCC’s MPEs are measured in terms of power (mW) over a unit surface area (cm?). Known as the
power density, the FCC has established an occupational MPE of 5 milliwatts per square centimeter
(mW/em?) and an uncontrolled MPE of | mW/cm2 for equipment operating in the 1900 MHz frequency
range. For the AT&T equipment operating at 850 MHz, the FCC’s occupational MPE is 2.83 mW/cm? and
an uncontrolled MPE of 0.57 mW/cm2. For the AT&T equipment operating at 700 MHz, the FCC’s
occupational MPE is 2.33 mW/cm? and an uncontrolled MPE of 0.47 mW/cm?2. These limits are considered
protective of these populations.

Table I: Limits for Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE)

(A) Limits for Occupational/Controlled Exposure
Frequency Range Electric Field Magnetic Field 5 Averaging Time

(MHz) Strength (E) Strength (H) P°w(‘::‘\?v‘7::"§;' ®) | e, [HT or S

(V/im) (A/m) (minutes)

0.3-3.0 614 1.63 (100)* 6
3.0-30 1842/f 4.89/f (90074 6
30-300 61.4 0.163 1.0 6
300-1,500 -- - f/300 6
1,500-100,000 -- -- 5 6

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346




RF-EME Compliance Report
EBI Project No. 6222005058

USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
999 Old Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Table I: Limits for Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE)

(A) Limits for Occupational/Controlled Exposure

Frequency Range
(MHz)

Electric Field
Strength (E)
(Vim)

Magnetic Field
Strength (H)
(A/m)

Power Density (S)
(mW/cm?)

Averaging Time
[ET’, [H]’, or S
(minutes)

(B) Limits for General Public/Uncontrolled Exposure

Frequency Range Electric Field Magnetic Field . Averaging Time
(MHz) Strength (E) Strength (H) P°w(‘::‘v'f;;:::§;' ®) | [ED, [HT or S
(V/im) (A/m) (minutes)
0.3-1.34 614 1.63 (100)* 30
1.34-30 824/f 2.19/f (180/f%)* 30
30-300 27.5 0.073 0.2 30
300-1,500 - - f/1,500 30
1,500-100,000 - - 1.0 30
f = Frequency in (MHz)
* Plane-wave equivalent power density
Figure 1. FCC Limits for Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE)
Plane-wave Equivalent Power Density
1,000 - I I — | |
—  Cccupational/Controlled Exposure
———- General Population/Uncontrolled Exposure
_ 100~ _
E
L
=
E
2> 10+ -
2 st i
]
=}
o}
E - e .
a
02 _
o.1 L1 | | [ I I
0.03 0.3 1 3 30 300 | 3000 30,000 + 300,000
1.34 1.500 100,000

Frequency (MHz)

Based on the above, the most restrictive thresholds for exposures of unlimited duration to RF energy for
several personal wireless services are summarized below:

Personal Wireless Service Approximate Occupational Public MPE
Frequency MPE

Microwave (Point-to-Point) 5,000 - 80,000 MHz 5.00 mW/cm? 1.00 mW/cm?
Broadband Radio (BRS) 2,600 MHz 5.00 mW/cm? 1.00 mW/cm?
Wireless Communication (WCS) 2,300 MHz 5.00 mW/cm? 1.00 mW/cm?
Advanced Wireless (AWS) 2,100 MHz 5.00 mW/cm? 1.00 mW/cm?
Personal Communication (PCS) 1,950 MHz 5.00 mW/cm? 1.00 mW/cm?
Cellular Telephone 870 MHz 2.90 mW/cm? 0.58 mW/cm?
Specialized Mobile Radio (SMR) 855 MHz 2.85 mW/cm? 0.57 mW/cm?

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 4




RF-EME Compliance Report
EBI Project No. 6222005058

USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
999 Old Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Personal Wireless Service Approximate Dcchpationa Public MPE
Frequency MPE

Long Term Evolution (LTE) 700 MHz 2.33 mW/cm? 0.47 mW/cm?

Most Restrictive Frequency Range 30-300 MHz 1.00 mW/cm? 0.20 mW/cm?

MPE limits are designed to provide a substantial margin of safety. These limits apply for continuous
exposures and are intended to provide a prudent margin of safety for all persons, regardless of age, gender,
size, or health.

Personal Communication (PCS) facilities used by AT&T in this area operate within a frequency range of
700-1900 MHz. Facilities typically consist of: |) electronic transceivers (the radios or cabinets) connected
to wired telephone lines; and 2) antennas that send the wireless signals created by the transceivers to be
received by individual subscriber units (PCS telephones). Transceivers are typically connected to antennas
by coaxial cables.

Because of the short wavelength of PCS services, the antennas require line-of-site paths for good
propagation, and are typically installed above ground level. Antennas are constructed to concentrate
energy towards the horizon, with as little energy as possible scattered towards the ground or the sky.
This design, combined with the low power of PCS facilities, generally results in no possibility for exposure
to approach Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE) levels, with the exception of areas directly in front of
the antennas.

2.0 AT&T RF EXPOSURE POLICY REQUIREMENTS

AT&T’s RF Exposure: Responsibilities, Procedures & Guidelines document, dated October 28, 2014,
requires that:

I. All sites must be analyzed for RF exposure compliance;
2. All sites must have that analysis documented; and
3. All sites must have any necessary signage and barriers installed.

Pursuant to this guidance, worst-case predictive modeling was performed for the site. This modeling is
described below in Section 3.0. Lastly, based on the modeling and survey data, EBI has produced a
Compliance Plan for this site that outlines the recommended signage and barriers. The recommended
Compliance Plan for this site is described in Section 4.0.

3.0 WORST-CASE PREDICTIVE MODELING

In accordance with AT&T’s RF Exposure policy, EBI performed theoretical modeling using RoofMaster ™
software to estimate the worst-case power density at the site rooftop and ground-level and/or nearby
rooftops resulting from operation of the antennas. RoofMaster™ is a widely-used predictive modeling
program that has been developed to predict RF power density values for rooftop and tower
telecommunications sites produced by vertical collinear antennas that are typically used in the cellular,
PCS, paging and other communications services. Using the computational methods set forth in Federal
Communications (FCC) Office of Engineering & Technology (OET) Bulletin 65, “Evaluating Compliance
with FCC Guidelines for Human Exposure to Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Fields” (OET-65),
RoofMaster™ calculates predicted power density in a scalable grid based on the contributions of all RF
sources characterized in the study scenario. At each grid location, the cumulative power density is
expressed as a percentage of the FCC limits. Manufacturer antenna pattern data is utilized in these
calculations. RoofMaster™ models consist of the Far Field model as specified in OET-65 and an
implementation of the OET-65 Cylindrical Model (Sula9). The models utilize several operational
specifications for different types of antennas to produce a plot of spatially-averaged power densities that
can be expressed as a percentage of the applicable exposure limit. A statistical power factor may be applied
to the antenna system based on guidance from the carrier and system manufacturers.

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 5



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 OId Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

For this report, EBI utilized antenna and power data provided by AT&T and compared the resultant worst-
case MPE levels to the FCC’s occupational/controlled exposure limits outlined in OET Bulletin 65.

The assumptions used in the modeling are based upon information provided by AT&T and information
gathered from other sources. An Unknown Carrier also has antennas on the monotree. Information
about these antennas was included in the modeling analysis.

Based on worst-case predictive modeling, there are no modeled exposures on any accessible rooftop or
ground walking/working surface related to ATT’s proposed antennas that exceed the FCC’s occupational
and/or general public exposure limits at this site.

At the nearest walking/working surfaces to the AT&T antennas on the adjacent roof level, the maximum
power density generated by the AT&T antennas is approximately 46.38 percent of the FCC’s general
public limit (9.28 percent of the FCC’s occupational limit). The composite exposure level from all carriers
on this site is approximately 52.05 percent of the FCC’s general public limit (10.41 percent of the FCC’s
occupational limit) at the nearest walking/working surface to each antenna. Based on worst-case predictive
modeling, there are no areas at ground/street level related to the proposed AT&T antennas that exceed
the FCC’s occupational or general public exposure limits at this site. At ground/street level, the maximum
power density generated by the antennas is approximately 24.26 percent of the FCC’s general public limit
(4.852 percent of the FCC’s occupational limit).

There were also worst-case predicted exposures above the general public MPE in front of the Sectors A
and B Unknown antennas. Modeling indicates that the AT&T contribution to these areas is 5% or less of
the general public MPE and, as such, under FCC regulations, AT&T is not responsible for these predicted
exceedances.

A graphical representation of the RoofMaster ™ modeling results is presented in Appendix B.

Microwave dish antennas are designed for point-to-point operations at the elevations of the installed
equipment rather than ground-level coverage. Based on AT&T’s RF Exposure: Responsibilities, Procedures
& Guidelines document, dated October 28, 2014, microwave antennas are considered compliant if they
are higher than 20 feet above any accessible walking/working surface. There are no microwaves installed
at this site.

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 6



RF-EME Compliance Report
EBI Project No. 6222005058

4.0 RECOMMENDED SIGNAGE/COMPLIANCE PLAN

USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
999 Old Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Signs are the primary means for control of access to areas where RF exposure levels may potentially
exceed the MPE. As presented in the AT&T guidance document, the signs must:

= Be posted at a conspicuous point;
= Be posted at the appropriate locations;
= Be readily visible; and

= Make the reader aware of the potential risks prior to entering the affected area.

The table below presents the signs that may be used for AT&T installations.

CRAN /| HETNET Small Cell Decals / Signs

Alerting Signs

NOTICE &

RF energy emitted by this antenna may exceed the FCC's
exposure limits for the general population.

Stay at least 1 feet away from the antenna.

Call ATAT at 800-638-2822, option 9 then 3, for help if you
need access within feet.

NOTICE
DECAL

STONEMOUSE DS9S

| emvimament.

| NOTICE |
()

| M operabes astimnas f this ste.
This Peiet
| e vt Seequency (1) e mvay esceed
| e PO General Popaditen Lupasare Limit,
| Folkow caiety guidelines for working in an FF
| Contact ABET 21 800-638- 18 12, option S.and 3,

| and fodow thelrimtructions priss i performing sy
| mmmmamnmmnwm

0 e ilerig a0 ey

TRILINGUAL
NOTICE

. R N

NOTICE 2

NOTICE &)

ATAT operates antennas at this structure,

this point you are antering an
area where radio frequency (RF) fields
may exceed the FCC General Population
exposure limits.

"ACAUTION

A\

WIAT aperate amtrmas 4t his P

ACAUTION

antennas.

Contact ATAT at 800-638-2822, opt. 9, 3
and follow their instructions prior to
performing any maintenance or repairs
above this point

Cell Site USID.

Follow safety guidelines for working in an NOTICE e e i KT aperates e ot i e,
RF environment. | et Gomupatiora Expussmn Lt mﬁ:duum pua gy
Keep  ft. away from the fronts of the SIG N |l A g Ntm:rrwhmgsumm” ;
antennas. Cootat KIS st S90638.2802 ion hand 3, Follow ety gubdelines for wiaking in an 5
Contact AT&T at 800-638-2822, opt. 9, 3 vl ol thei nstrctions o b performing envirgnrseat.
and follow their instructions prior to | .""'"“""“""" Seyond Ui et (:rﬁmgm-m-m}._mme;d';}.
parforming any maintenance or repairs e N ! instructioas price b perfoeming
W iae pebit CAUTION 2 - S
This is AT&T Site USID . TV TN
= ROOFTOP CAUTION 2A
= —————— —=-——
ACAUTION | 'ACAUTION
U N -~ | Onthis tower: MRT st antoran o Fv e
RF energy emitted by this antenna may exceed the FCC's CAUTION | bt 1 vt e i oot o o v s
occupational exposure limits. | ey ascped v FCL Dccapetoonal Expaae Limt, T o 3
DECAL | antrt AT ot D00 6302002, ot 1, HM""'““” "““:m .
Stay at least 1 feet away from the antenna. | l_-::::::.m.lm.’?l,:w“ ooty pltne g4
Call ATA&T at 800-638-2822, option 9 then 3, for help if you R s s i b vomst %&"E“"aﬁ_‘.‘,‘.:’f,‘:ﬂi’;,
| T = ¥ evorenment e 4 pErAOT vl
need access within 1 feel. SIONEROUME D | FF masir rwwmmwmu:: | .m Emaace 3 oES: beven This past.
® ramee s ] e
ATAT op at this - —
this point you are entering an
area wl\e::d mhg'é?du:“’ (RF L:-m
may exceed the cupatio
exposure limits.
Follow safoty guidelines for working in an CAUTI ON AT opmstes aoomnis i ths e, ATAT agerates Ancsseis ot this ute.
RF environment. RV VY e epe——— L
whes i ey 87 e et
Keep M. away from the fronts of the SIGN el uyncy P A e e

PO Dot s Expamar i
ehire s o dfmwdmmm iy
. an B ot coul ress i pevees iy

(mntart 74T & MO-G38-2022, aptien B and 1
o st mseate et 15 graeeding
‘.!N-GMM

WARNING IB

FOC Camupations] [xposase Limity
r-n-mm-mmmlu g
R evirnment cak st i s ey

Comtact ATRT a1 $00-658 221 option % e L.
ol eibow et s b, e | i mieg
Al 1 ez, wih e striped aeva

WARNING 2A

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 OId Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Based upon protocols presented in AT&T’s RF Exposure: Responsibilities, Procedures & Guidelines
document, dated October 28, 2014, and additional guidance provided by AT&T, the following signage is
recommended on the site:

*  Yellow CAUTION 2B sign posted at the base of the monotree near the climbing ladder-.

No barriers are required for this site. Barriers should be constructed of weather-resistant plastic or
wood fencing. Barriers may consist of railing, rope, chain, or weather-resistant plastic if no other types
are permitted or are feasible. Painted stripes should only be used as a last resort and only in regions where
there is little chance of snowfall. If painted stripes are selected as barriers, it is recommended that the
stripes and signage be illuminated. The signage and any barriers are graphically represented in the Signage
Plan presented in Appendix B.

5.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

EBlI has prepared this Radiofrequency Emissions Compliance Report for the proposed AT&T
telecommunications equipment at the site located at 999 Old Lucas Road in San Rafael, California.

EBI has conducted theoretical modeling to estimate the worst-case power density from AT&T antennas
to document potential MPE levels at this location and ensure that site control measures are adequate to
meet FCC and OSHA requirements, as well as AT&T’s corporate RF safety policies. As presented in the
preceding sections, based on worst-case predictive modeling, there are no modeled exposures on any
accessible rooftop or ground walking/working surface related to ATT’s proposed antennas that exceed
the FCC’s occupational and/or general public exposure limits at this site. A power reduction was included
in this site per guidance from AT&T. This reduction was applied to the Sector C AIR6449 and AIR6419
antennas in the form of 3dB of loss.

To reduce the risk of exposure and/or injury, EBI recommends that access to the monotree or areas
associated with the active antenna installation be restricted and secured where possible. Signage is
recommended at the site as presented in Section 4.0 and Appendix B. Posting of the signage brings the
site into compliance with FCC rules and regulations and AT&T’s corporate RF safety policies.

6.0 LIMITATIONS

This report was prepared for the use of AT&T Mobility, LLC to meet requirements outlined in AT&T’s
corporate RF safety guidelines. It was performed in accordance with generally accepted practices of other
consultants undertaking similar studies at the same time and in the same locale under like circumstances.
The conclusions provided by EBI and its partners are based solely on information supplied by AT&T,
including modeling instructions, inputs, parameters and methods. Calculations, data, and modeling
methodologies for C Band equipment Include a statistical factor reducing the power to 32% of maximum
theoretical power to account for spatial distribution of users, network utilization, time division duplexing,
and scheduling time. AT&T recommends the use of this factor based on a combination of guidance from
its antenna system manufacturers, supporting international industry standards, industry publications, and
its extensive experience. The observations in this report are valid on the date of the investigation. Any
additional information that becomes available concerning the site should be provided to EBI so that our
conclusions may be revised and modified, if necessary. This report has been prepared in accordance with
Standard Conditions for Engagement and authorized proposal, both of which are integral parts of this
report. No other warranty, expressed or implied, is made.

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 8



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 OId Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Appendix A

Personnel Certifications

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 9



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 OId Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Preparer Certification

I, Rebecca Sinisgalli, state that:

I am an employee of EnviroBusiness Inc. (d/b/a EBI Consulting), which provides RF-EME safety and
compliance services to the wireless communications industry.

| have successfully completed RF-EME safety training, and | am aware of the potential hazards from
RF-EME and would be classified “occupational” under the FCC regulations.

I am fully aware of and familiar with the Rules and Regulations of both the Federal Communications
Commissions (FCC) and the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) with regard
to Human Exposure to Radio Frequency Radiation.

| have been trained in on the procedures outlined in AT&T’s RF Exposure: Responsibilities,
Procedures & Guidelines document (dated October 28, 2014) and on RF-EME modeling using
RoofMaster™ modeling software.

| have reviewed the data provided by the client and incorporated it into this Site Compliance
Report such that the information contained in this report is true and accurate to the best of my
knowledge.

Rebivar. Do

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 10



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 Old Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Reviewed and Approved by:

sealed 23aug2022

Michael McGuire
Electrical Engineer
mike@h2dc.com

Note that EBI’s scope of work is limited to an evaluation of the Radio Frequency — Electromagnetic Energy
(RF-EME) field generated by the antennas and broadcast equipment noted in this report. The engineering
and design of the building and related structures, as well as the impact of the antennas and broadcast
equipment on the structural integrity of the building, are specifically excluded from EBI’s scope of work.

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 I



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 OId Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Appendix B

Compliance/Signage Plan

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 12



RF-EME Compliance Report
EBI Project No. 6222005058

USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
999 Old Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Ground Level Simulation |

SECTOR B

GROUND LEVEL=D'

N

SECTOR A

SECTORC

PLATFORM=10

Percert MPE Legend

[ o%-100%

B 100% - 500%

] 500 -5000%

W 5000«

Geresal Population Limits

Sula 09
FarField Overlay
Fedlection

10 foat gid size
g 0 1o b Fest]

Carier Cok Code

@ AT

O Unikpewn

WATER TANK= 30

Existing Sign
Proposed Sign

Installed Sign

SIGN IDENTIFICATION LEGEND
[vorece | Acumos
i) AT&T NOTICE 2 Sign | AT&T CAUTION 2 - Rooftop Sign
& A& | ATZT WARNING IBand 2A Signs | = | AT&T CAUTION 2B — Tower Sign
. AT&T NOTICE Small Cell Signs *_ | AT&T CAUTION 2C — Parapet Sign
— _ A .
AT&T CAUTION Small Cell Signs | = | ATAT TRILINGUAL NOTICE Sign

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 13



RF-EME Compliance Report USID No. 300309 Site No. CCL00656
EBI Project No. 6222005058 999 Old Lucas Road, San Rafael, California

Adjacent Water Tank Level Nearest Walking Surface Simulation

Percert MPE Legend
] 0%-100%

B 100% - S00%
[ s00% - 5000%

A P a— = ' T [ oo

Proposed CAUTION 2B - G Popton ik

Sign at Base of Monotree . ' ' ' ' e

climbing ladder 10100t gid size

| |
N {Avg 30 1o 36 Fest)
B ERERRRESRERRERRERENRENREHE] + + + -+ v

WATER TANK= 30 Cartiet Cokt Code
@ AT
O Unknown

SIGN IDENTIFICATION LEGEND

Tacame
AT&T NOTICE 2 Sign ~* | AT&T CAUTION 2 - Rooftop Sign

Existing Sign =
____________ AT&T WARNING IBand 2A Signs | =*. | AT&T CAUTION 28 - Tower Sign

: Proposed Sign 1
I AT&T NOTICE Small Cell Signs ..;.i AT&T CAUTION 2C - Parapet Sign

I ' Installed Sign _ vy ,

I — _1 ATAT CAUTION Small Cell Signs | = | ATAT TRILINGUAL NOTICE Sign

EBI Consulting ¢ 21 B Street ¢ Burlington, MA 01803 ¢ 1.800.786.2346 14



Environmental Noise Assessment

CCLO0656 AT&T Cellular Facility

City of San Rafael, California

BAC Job # 2022-108

Prepared For:
Complete Wireless Consulting

Attn: Steve Proo

2009 V Street

Sacramento, CA 95818

Prepared By:

Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc.

Juis Lot

Dario Gotchet, Principal Consultant

June 30, 2022

)| BOLLARD
/) / / Acoustical Consultants

Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc. @ P.O. Box 7968, Auburn, CA. 95604 e Phone: (530) 537-2328 e bacnoise.com




Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc.

Introduction

The CCL00656 AT&T Wireless Unmanned Telecommunications Facility (project) proposes the
installation of cellular equipment within a lease area located at 999 Old Lucas Valley Road in the
City of San Rafael, California (APN: 165-010-03). The externally mounted HVAC unit of a pre-
manufactured walk-in cabinet (WIC) shelter and an emergency diesel standby generator have
been identified as the primary noise sources associated with the project. The project site location
with aerial imagery is shown in Figure 1. The studied site drawings are dated June 7, 2022.

Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc. has been contracted by Complete Wireless Consulting, Inc.
to complete an environmental noise assessment regarding the proposed project cellular
equipment operations. Specifically, the following assessment addresses daily noise production
and exposure associated with operation of the project emergency generator and HVAC
equipment.

Please refer to Appendix A for definitions of acoustical terminology used in this report. Appendix
B illustrates common noise levels associated with various sources.

Criteria for Acceptable Noise Exposure

San Rafael Municipal Code

Chapter 8.13 of the San Rafael Municipal Code provides noise level limits that would be applicable
to the proposed project equipment. The Municipal Code provides noise level limits that vary
depending on the zoning of the receiving land use and noise source type. According to MarinMap
Viewer (accessed June 22, 2022), the project parcel and adjacent parcel are zoned Parks/Open
Space District.

The nearest noise-sensitive uses have been identified as residential to the north and east of the
project, as shown on Figure 1. Section 8.13.040.A of the San Rafael Municipal Code establishes
daytime and nighttime noise level standards of 50 and 40 dB Leq (respectively) for constant noise
sources (such as the proposed equipment) affecting residential properties. The following analysis
of project equipment noise exposure focuses on compliance with the Municipal Code residential
noise level criteria at the property lines of the nearest residential uses to the north and east.
Satisfaction of the City’s noise level criteria at the closest residential uses would ensure
compliance with the City’s noise level limits at more distant residential uses.

Exemptions to the Municipal Code Noise Regulations

Section 8.13.070 of the San Rafael Municipal Code provides exemptions to the noise regulations
established in Section 8.13.040. Specifically, Section 8.13.070(B) provides an exemption to the
emission of sound for “all necessary equipment utilized for the purpose of responding to an
emergency, or necessary to restore, preserve, protect or save lives or property from imminent
danger or loss or harm”. Because the project cellular equipment would operate using City power,
the specific purpose of the generator proposed as part of this project is to provide power to the
system during an emergency power outage, thereby allowing the system to provide vital
communications during the power outage.

Environmental Noise Assessment
CCL00656 AT&T Cellular Facility — San Rafael, California
Page 1



EREE
APPleberrf/ Dr <

| %?ﬁw o qap AT 0T
g!‘ v L

Land Use: Residential
APN: 164-034-05

—Lucas Valley Rd

old Lucas valley Rd

Google Earth
Legend

O

Proposed AT&T Cellular Equipment Lease Area (Approximate)

Residential Parcel Boundaries

N
Scale (Feet)

150 300

g , ' E m-g é'nn@@ﬂ X 1 ‘

b Land Use: Residential

N _ APN: 165-131-03
/ )

o

= A\
r 3 y -
€ o 5 :
= » n
Y
h= |
O
o
= ]
A ]
- Ry |
¢ X
A
> & k.
o Ao
B

CCL00656 AT&T Cellular Facility
San Rafael, California

Proposed Cellular Facility Lease Area
& Nearest Residential Uses

. BOLLARD
Figure 1 [jm




Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc.

Noise Standards Applied to this Project
HVAC Equipment

Noise would be generated by this project in two ways. The first is the ongoing operation of the
cellular HVAC equipment cooling systems. These systems utilize fans to circulate cooling air
through the electric circuitry. During warmer periods, the cooling requirements will be greater,
and the fans will run continuously. During cooler periods, however, the heat transfer requirements
are diminished, and the fans will run intermittently as needed. Because the fan operation is a
normal aspect of the project, and because the fans could run continuously during warm nighttime
hours (i.e., more than 30 minutes per hour), the noise standards applied to the HVAC equipment
are as follows:

e 50 dB Leq during daytime hours
e 40 dB Leq during nighttime hours

Satisfaction with the City’s more restrictive nighttime noise level standard would ensure
compliance with the City’s less restrictive daytime noise level limit. As a result, this analysis of
project-generated HVAC equipment noise levels focuses on achieving compliance with the City’s
nighttime noise standard of 40 dB Leq at the nearest residential property lines.

Emergency Generator

The function of the emergency generator is to provide ongoing communications support during
emergencies resulting in power outages. As a result, the emergency generator would operate
only during routine testing and emergency power outages.

With respect to testing, the emergency generator would be tested during daytime hours only,
twice per month, for a duration not exceeding 15 minutes during each test. The purpose of this
routine testing is to ensure that the generator will be properly lubricated and in good working order
in the event of an emergency resulting in a power outage. Because this routine testing would
occur for a period of 15 minutes per hour, and only during daytime hours, the noise generation of
this aspect of the project should be evaluated relative to the City’s daytime 50 Leq noise standard.

Aside from routine daytime testing described above, the emergency generator would only operate
during emergencies resulting in power outages. Section 8.13.070 of the San Rafael Municipal
Code exempts the operation of the generator during emergencies. As a result, the analysis of
generator noise levels focuses on achieving compliance with the City’s daytime noise level
standard of 50 dB Leq, as operation of the generator during emergency conditions resulting in
power outages are identified as being exempt in the Municipal Code.

Project Noise Generation

HVAC Equipment Noise Source and Reference Noise Level

The project proposes the installation of a pre-manufactured walk-in cabinet equipped with one (1)
externally mounted HVAC unit within the equipment lease area illustrated on Figure 1. According
to the project site plans, the HVAC unit assumed for installation at this site is a Marvair Airxcel,
Inc. Model ECUA18ACA. Based on reference noise level data obtained from the manufacturer

Environmental Noise Assessment
CCL00656 AT&T Cellular Facility — San Rafael, California
Page 3



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc.

(Marvair Airxcel, Inc.), this specific HYAC unit model has a reference noise level of 62 dB at 5
feet. The manufacturer’'s noise level data specification sheet for the proposed HVAC equipment
is provided as Appendix C.

Generator Noise Source and Reference Noise Level

The project also proposes the installation of an emergency standby diesel generator within the
lease area to maintain cellular service during emergency power outages. Based on the project
site plans, a Generac Industrial Power Systems Model SD030 is assumed for installation at this
site. It is further assumed that the proposed generator will be equipped with a Level 2 Acoustic
Enclosure. According to the manufacturer's noise level data specification sheet, provided as
Appendix D, the Level 2 Acoustic Enclosure attenuates generator noise exposure to 68 dB at 23
feet.

The generator which is proposed at this site would only operate during emergencies (power
outages) and brief daytime periods for periodic maintenance/lubrication. According to the project
applicant, testing of the generator would occur twice per month, during daytime hours, for a
duration of approximately 15 minutes. The emergency generator would not operate at night,
except during power outages.

Predicted Facility Noise Levels at Nearest Residential Property Lines

The nearest existing residential uses are located north and east of the project, identified as APN’s:
164-034-05 and 165-131-03 (respectively) on Figure 1. Assuming standard spherical spreading
loss (-6 dB per doubling of distance), project equipment noise exposure at the nearest residential
property lines was calculated and the results of those calculations are presented in Table 1.

Table 1
Project Equipment Noise Exposure at Nearest Residential Property Lines
Distance from Predicted Equipment Noise Level, Leq (dB)
APN' Direction Lease Area (ft)? HVAC Generator
164-034-05 North 750 <20 38
165-131-03 East 1,000 <20 35

" Parcels shown in Figure 1.
2 Distances scaled using the provided site plans and the MarinMap Viewer.
Source: Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc. (2022)

Because the proposed HVAC equipment could potentially be in operation during nighttime hours,
the operation of the HVAC unit would be subject to the San Rafael Municipal Code 40 dB Leq
nighttime noise level standard. As shown in Table 1, the predicted HVAC equipment noise levels
of less than 20 dB Leq at the nearest residential property lines would satisfy the Municipal Code
40 dB Leq nighttime noise level standard by a wide margin. As a result, no additional noise
mitigation measures would be warranted for this aspect of the project.

Because the project generator would only operate during daytime hours for brief periods required
for testing and maintenance, and because generator noise is exempt during emergency
operations, project generator noise was assessed relative to the San Rafael Municipal Code 50
dB Leq daytime noise level standard. As indicated in Table 1, the predicted generator noise levels

Environmental Noise Assessment
CCL00656 AT&T Cellular Facility — San Rafael, California
Page 4



Bollard Acoustical Consultants, Inc.

of 35 to 38 dB Leq would satisfy the Municipal Code 50 dB Leq daytime noise level standard by a
wide margin. As a result, no additional noise mitigation measures would be warranted for this
aspect of the project.

Conclusions

Based on the equipment noise level data and analyses presented above, project related
equipment noise exposure is expected to satisfy the applicable City of San Rafael noise exposure
limits at the closest residential property lines. Satisfaction of the City’s noise level criteria at the
closest residential uses would ensure compliance with the City’s noise level limits at more distant
residential uses. As a result, no additional noise mitigation measures would be warranted for this
project.

This concludes our environmental noise assessment for the proposed CCL00656 AT&T Cellular
Facility in San Rafael, California. Please contact BAC at (530) 537-2328 or info@bacnoise.com
with any questions or requests for additional information.

Environmental Noise Assessment
CCL00656 AT&T Cellular Facility — San Rafael, California
Page 5



Appendix A

Acoustical Terminology

Acoustics

Ambient Noise

Attenuation

A-Weighting

Decibel or dB

CNEL

Frequency

lic

Ldn

Leq

Lmax
Loudness

Masking

Noise

Peak Noise

RTeo

STC

The science of sound.

The distinctive acoustical characteristics of a given space consisting of all noise sources
audible at that location. In many cases, the term ambient is used to describe an existing
or pre-project condition such as the setting in an environmental noise study.

The reduction of an acoustic signal.

A frequency-response adjustment of a sound level meter that conditions the output
signal to approximate human response.

Fundamental unit of sound. A Bell is defined as the logarithm of the ratio of the sound
pressure squared over the reference pressure squared. A Decibel is one-tenth of a
Bell.

Community Noise Equivalent Level. Defined as the 24-hour average noise level with
noise occurring during evening hours (7 - 10 p.m.) weighted by a factor of three and
nighttime hours weighted by a factor of 10 prior to averaging.

The measure of the rapidity of alterations of a periodic signal, expressed in cycles per
second or hertz.

Impact Insulation Class (IIC): A single-number representation of a floor/ceiling partition’s
impact generated noise insulation performance. The field-measured version of this
number is the FIIC.

Day/Night Average Sound Level. Similar to CNEL but with no evening weighting.
Equivalent or energy-averaged sound level.

The highest root-mean-square (RMS) sound level measured over a given period of time.

A subjective term for the sensation of the magnitude of sound.

The amount (or the process) by which the threshold of audibility is for one sound is
raised by the presence of another (masking) sound.

Unwanted sound.

The level corresponding to the highest (not RMS) sound pressure measured over a
given period of time. This term is often confused with the “Maximum?” level, which is the
highest RMS level.

The time it takes reverberant sound to decay by 60 dB once the source has been
removed.

Sound Transmission Class (STC): A single-number representation of a partition’s noise
insulation performance. This number is based on laboratory-measured, 16-band (1/3-
octave) transmission loss (TL) data of the subject partition. The field-measured version
of this number is the FSTC.

a)) BOLLARD

/) / / Acoustical Consultants




Appendix B

Typical A-Weighted Sound Levels of Common Noise Sources

Decibel Scale (dBA)*

/ 12-Gauge Shotgun 160 > %

m«-*r-
130

L ]
N « T
o B
4. Q- Vg

. Qi 2%

>E<

||—><-

E \","—‘ | rans bu er 4
= | RefrigeratorHum 40 [> ﬂ \J iBeteal J

Motorcycle
s >

neingerdion n

*Sources:
Rustling Leaves 30 W COc. QOWnkishVIOpics/ noise/noseemetr Mol
n hitp/fe-a-Lcomeanngionservation'tag main.cim
=~ Pin Falling 15 | 2




Appendix C

Marvair

154 Seedling Drive
Condele, Georgla 31015
229-273-0753

Sound Pressure Level for the Industrial Product Air Conditioners (dBA)
Distance From Model Number
Unit (Feet) ECUADGACA ECUADSACA ECUADIZACA | ECUADIBACA
5 515 62
10 o). F 58
20 47.8 55
30 46.5 51
40 456
50 456
60
70
80

MNotes: (1) Date: July 1.2018

(2) Background Scund Pressure Level: 41 dBA

[3) Sound Level Meter 1 Meter Above Ground Directly in Line with Outdoor Coil

(4) All units - 4104 Refrigerant



BA
Rectangle


Appendix D GENERAC | INDUSTRIAL
—

SD030 dimensions, weights and sound levels
OPEN SET
USABLE
Rggurgs CAPACITY
e H (GAL) L W B Wr dBA*
[ NO TANK - 76 38 46 2060
. A 20 54 76 38 59 2540
48 132 76 38 m 2770 82
L W 7 211 76 38 83 2979
109 300 93 38 87 3042
STANDARD ENCLOSURE
& g & RUNTIME | USABLE
HouRg | CAPACITY
(GAL) L W H WT dBA*
T H
& NO TANK - 9% 38 50 2362
. 20 54 9% 38 63 2842
48 132 9% 38 75 3072 77
i 211 9% 38 87 3281
L w 109 300 9% 3 91 3344
LEVEL 1 ACOUSTIC ENCLOSURE
RUNTIVE | USABLE
1 HOURS CAPACITY
(GAL) L W H WT dBA*
NO TANK - 13 38 50 2515
KRB ol - 0 L
- o] 20 54 113 38 63 2995
48 132 13 38 75 3225 70
* 77 21 113 38 87 3434
109 300 13 38 9 3497
L w
LEVEL 2 ACOUSTIC ENCLOSURE
] I USABLE
_J FUN e | capaciry
' (GAL) L W B WT dBA*
0 a NO TANK - 95 38 62 2520
2 H 20 54 95 38 75 3000
Skl ° = = 48 132 95 38 87 3230 68
. i 211 95 38 99 3439
. . 109 300 95 38 103 3502
L ' - W - *All measurements are approximate and for estimation purposes only. Weights are without fuel in tank.
Sound levels measured at 23ft (7m) and does not account for ambient site conditions.
Tank Options YOUR FACTORY RECOGNIZED GENERAC INDUSTRIAL DEALER
O  MDEQ 0PT
O Florida DERM/DEP OPT
O Chicago Fire Code OPT
O IFC Certification CALL
O ULC CALL

Other Custom Options Available from your
Generac Industrial Power Dealer

Specification characteristics may change without notice. Dimensions and weights are for preliminary purposes only. Please consult a Generac Power Systems Industrial Dealer for detailed installation drawings.

Generac Power Systems, Inc. » S45 W29290 HWY. 59, Waukesha, WI 53189 « generac.com

©2012 Generac Power Systems, Inc. All rights reserved. All specifications are subject to change without notice. Bulletin 0195010SEY-B / Printed in U.S.A. 02/15/12

@
w
@

(=]

=

=

(=

o™



BA
Rectangle


INITIATIVE/PROJECT: NSB

USID: 300309
FA LOCATION CODE: 10070336

RFDS ID #: 4508079

RFDS VERSION: 2.00

RFDS DATE: 05/10/2022
PACE JOB#: MRSFR073871
PTN#: 3701 AOWFMW

AT&T SITE NUMBER: CCL00656

& HUCKLEBERRY RD.

999 OLD LUCAS VALLEY ROAD
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94903
JURISDICTION: CITY OF SAN RAFAEL
APN: 165-010-03

AT&T SITE NAME: LUCAS VALLEY RD.

SITE TYPE: SHELTER / MONOPINE

[ Issued For: )

CCLO0656
LUCAS VALLEY RD.
& HUCKLEBERRY RD.

999 OLD LUCAS VALLEY RD.

SAN RAFAEL, CA 94903
\ J

r N
PREPARED FOR

= at&t

5001 Executive Parkway
San Ramon, California 94583

/ﬂ’ﬂm

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

VICINITY MAP

CODE COMPLIANCE

\, )
(" Vendor: h
COMPLETE
Wireless Consulting, Inc.

\.

(AT&TSITENO:  CCL00656 )
PROJECT NO: -
DRAWN BY: -

CHECKED BY:  J. GRAY

A (P) AT&T NEW SITE BUILD UNMANNED TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY CONSISTING OF INSTALLING:

(P) LEASE AREA W/ ASSOCIATED GROUND MOUNTED EQUIPMENT SHELTER & GENERATOR & (P) UTILITIES TO (P) SITE
LOCATION. (P) MONOPINE W/ ASSOCIATED ANTENNAS & ANTENNA EQUIPMENT

PROJECT INFORMATION

SITE NAME:
SITE #
COUNTY:
JURISDICTION:
APN:

SITE ADDRESS:

CURRENT ZONING:

CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

OCCUPANCY TYPE:

POWER:

LATITUDE:

LONGITUDE:

GROUND ELEVATION:

PROPERTY OWNER:

APPLICANT:

LUCAS VALLEY RD. & HUCKLEBERRY RD.

CCLO0656

MARIN

CITY OF SAN RAFAEL
165-010-03

999 OLD LUCAS VALLEY ROAD
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94903

TBD

V-B

U, (UNMANNED COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY)

PG&E

N 38" 01" 24.86" NAD 83
N 38.023572° NAD 85

W 122" 33" 40.26" NAD 83
W 122.561184° NAD 83

329" AMSL

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
220 NELLEN AVENUE
CORTE MADERA, CA 94925

AT&T MOBILITY
5001 EXECUTIVE PARKWAY
SAN RAMON, CA 94583

SITE ACQUISITION COMPANY:

LEASING CONTACT:

ZONING CONTACT:

CONSTRUCTION CONTACT:

COMPLETE WIRELESS CONSULTING
2009 V STREET
SACRAMENTO, CA 95818

ATIN: ROCKY CORDOVA

(916) 616—0468
RCORDOVAGCOMPLETEWIRELESS.NET

ATIN: KEVIN GALLAGHER

(916) 764-2632
KGALLAGHER@COMPLETEWIRELESS.NET

BECHTEL
KEITH CONNER

(408) 306-3801
GKCONNER@BECHTEL.COM

Marinwood Creek

Flayground

o\ —— #fé;‘-@ﬁ,‘?_-;15,";[;';’;';E;'ﬁ;‘._j. ot 2022 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC), PART 2, VOLUME 1&2, TITLE 24 C.C.R.

_ =
Guyl ':.-'-".'I C EH¢

Lucas Vallay Rd

Jerry RUssom
Memaorial Park

SCALE: N/A

SITE LOCATION

Lucas Vg
B '{r".-lr

£ Miller Creek
n:r;iﬁ‘;J Middie School

NOT CONFORMING TO THESE CODES:

2022 CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, PART 1, TITLE 24 C.C.R.

(2021 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE AND 2022 CALIFORNIA AMENDMENTS)
2022 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE (CEC), PART 3, TITLE 24 C.C.R.

(2020 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE AND 2022 CALIFORNIA AMENDMENTS)
2022 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE (CMC) PART 4, TITLE 24 C.C.R.

(2021 UNIFORM MECHANICAL CODE AND 2022 CALIFORNIA AMENDMENTS)
2022 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE (CPC), PART 5, TITLE 24 C.C.R.

(2021 UNIFORM PLUMBING CO<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>